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Lang Road, looking toward Portsmouth,
Collection of the

Rye

Historical Society.

circa 1938.
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March

portion of the
14, 1995, at the

Rye Town Meeting

from 9:00 A.M.

The BUSINESS

portion of the

March

18,
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RYE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
to

7:00 P.M.

will be held on SATURDAY,
RYE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL

Rye Town Meeting

1995, at the

commencing

at

9:00 A.M.

ALL RYE RESIDENTS ARE URGED TO ATTEND.

Digitized by the Internet Archive
in

2010 with funding from

Boston Library Consortium IVIember Libraries

http://www.archive.org/details/annualreportofto1994ryen

DEDICATION
The Board of Selectmen take

great pride in dedicating the 1994

Town

Report to

MARY ESTHER PARSONS PAPP.
Mary Esther Parsons Papp was bom in New York in 1934. She was the daughter
of Charles Warren Parsons of Rye and Esther Waterhouse Parsons, who were
originally from Iowa, but later made her home in Rye for many years. During her
growing-up years in Evanston, Illinois, Mary spent part of almost every summer
at the Parsons Homestead in Rye, absorbing her mother's dedication to
entertaining and to serving her community. Mary received a college degree from
Papp launched the next stage
of her life. Three children arrived: Andrew, Scott, and
and the Papps
eventually settled in Hyde Park, New York, where they remained until Bob
retired from IBM, and they built their dream house in Rye in 1990.
the University of Colorado, and marriage to Robert

Amy—

Life in

Rye was busy

for

Mary

as she continued with

started enthusiastically to pursue several others:

many

favorite projects

and

she attended church regularly

and worked with the Stephens Ministry at Bethany Congregational Christian
Church; she honed and expanded her considerable skills at watercolor painting
through membership in the Seacoast Artists Association; she served as President
of the Rye Women's Association in 1993-94; she continued to be a devoted
mother to her children, and welcomed her role as grandmother to her three
grandchildren.

Mary

also found time to sort out Parsons family history notes and memorabilia
going back to the mid-18th century, and to incorporate her "findings" in the
charming decor of her home.

Mary Esther Parsons Papp brought an engaging combination of humor,
compassion, and take-charge capability to all of the many activities and projects
she undertook during her retirefment years in Rye. She touched many lives and
enriched us

She

is

all in

the process.

greatly missed!

SPECIAL RECOGNITION

This year, the Board of Selectmen take great pleasure in paying special
HARRY A. ELDRIDGE, a man who is "proud of his town and
the good people in it."

recognition to

HARRY A. ELDRIDGE

was

bom

in

Rye on January

5, 1915.

He was

the son of

Willie S. and Bertha G. Locke Eldridge, a descendant of Captain John Locke.

Harry

is

a life long resident of

Rye

residing in the

same house he was born

in

located on Grove Road.

Harry worked over
including the

fifty

(50) years for various Town of Rye departments
the Fire Department. Prior to his working for the

Highway and

Town, he was employed by Mel's Truck Sales of North Hampton, NH.

HARRY

A. ELDRIDGE can best be described as a gentle, kind, unassuming,
giving person, expecting nothing in return.
His loyalty to his relatives and
friends is admirable.

The Town of Rye

is

proud

to

have

HARRY

A.

ELDRIDGE

as a resident!

IN

MEMORIAM
1921-1993

HAROLD NATHAN SLEEPER

was bom in Manchester, NH. He worked for
General Electric as an electronics technician for twenty-five years beginning in
Lynn, MA, then moving to Somersworth, NH. Harold was the proud father of two
daughters (Lynda and Joyce), and was equally proud of his five grandchildren.

Kay moved to Rye and purchased
Ocean View Cabins on Ocean Boulevard. A few years later, they acquired
Seafarer Motel that they operated as a combined business for fifteen years.

In 1967, Harold N. Sleeper and his wife,

the

the

Harold was a member of the Rye Bethany Congregational Christian Church, and
served on the Board of Trustees. He was on the building committee, and spent
numerous hours at the church when the new addition was being built.

Harold was a founding member of the National Association of Emergency
Technicians, and was a 13-year member and past president of the Rye Volunteer
Ambulance Corps. He really enjoyed meeting people, and helping those in need.
Harold was active in Rye town politics. He served as a member and chairman of
Rye Budget Committee. He particularly enjoyed working with figures and
spent long hours pouring over town reports.

the

In 1979, Harold and

Rye

Kay purchased an

that they lovingly turned into their

own

performed

old post and

home.

beam

Working

19th century barn in

together, they

drew up

of the construction work, wiring, plumbing, and
painting themselves. With a lifetime of practical experience, and a vision for
what could be, Harold saved much of the original structure and timbers of the
bam and fashioned a unique and charming home. Kay continues to enjoy living
their

in their

plans,

all

home.

Similar to the vision for his home, Harold N. Sleeper loved Rye's unique
and devoted a lot of quality time working to keep it that way.

character,

IN

MEMORIAM
1903-1994

VIVIAN M.

VOLKMANN

M. and Emily W.

was born

in

New

Castle,

NH,

she

was

the daughter

She was a member of the Portsmouth High
School, Class of 1921, and a graduate of Plymouth Business School.

of Willard

Jenness.

During her career, she was employed by Brooks Motor Sales, the University of
NH and the Portsmouth Naval Shipyard, from which she retired in 1972.
Vivian and her husband Christopher were proud parents of three daughters
Priscilla, Esther, and Frances. Vivian was equally proud of her 12 grandchildren
and 13 great grandchildren.
Vivian was a lifelong member of the Rye Bethany Congregational Christian
Church, serving as Church Clerk from 1963 to the present. A former deaconess,
Sunday School superintendent and teacher, she remained active in Women's
Fellowship, Bible Study and New Beginnings groups.
Vivian was a 72-member and Past Worthy Matron of Rivermouth Chapter #54,
Order of the Eastern Star, a member of Union Rebekah Lodge, and of the Rye
Over 55 Club. She also served as the clerk of the Jenness Beach Village
District, secretary of the Rye School District, and as president of the Rye PTA.

"Grammy

was a strong and confident woman with
humor.
Her faith, family, and community were her
priorities.
She enjoyed researching and recording the family genealogy, and
emphasized its importance to the family. As active as Vivian was, she took
time to enjoy gardening, especially weeding!
V,"

as the family called her,

a wonderful sense of

Vivian M. Volkmann was a woman of many talents and accomplishments. She
will be remembered as a woman who was respected, admired, loved, and a role

model

to

many. Certainly, a hard

act to follow!
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FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,

1994

Term

MODERATOR

1996

Sharon N. DeVries

SELECTMEN

Expires

(2-year term)

(3-year term)

1995
1996
1997

Martin S. Quirk
Joseph G. Mills, Jr.
Edward H. Herlihy

TOWN CLERK/TAX COLLECTOR (3-year term)
1997

Jane E. Ireland

TREASURER
Barbara

J.

(3-year term)

1997

Flynn

CEMETERY TRUSTEES
Edward

J.

(3-year term)

1995
1996
1997

Ireland

Roger O. Philbrick
John W. Patrick

SUPERVISORS OF THE CHECKLIST

(6-year term)

John W. Patrick
Janet C.

1996
1998
2000

Thompson

Norman H. Yeaton

LIBRARY TRUSTEES

(3 year term)

Mark Epply
Leon Valley (replaced Abbie Jean Brownell,
who resigned)

1995
1995

Bettey Tobey

1997

TRUSTEES OF THE TRUST FUNDS

(3 year term)

Peggy Wade

1995
1996

Priscilla Patrick

1997

Christopher

S.

Christo

BUDGET COMMITTEE, MEMBERS-AT-LARGE
Andrew Mahoney

who

(replaced Curt Lovellette,

(3-year term)

1995

resigned)

George

Wood

Therese Zartarian
Douglas Abrams
Melvin R. Low

Gary Chapman

1995
1995
1996
1996
1997

Term Expires

PLANNING BOARD

(3-year term)

James D. Brown
Robert Papp (replaced David Dawley,

who

1995
1995

resigned)

G. Bradley Richards

1995
1996
1997
1997

Maynard L. Young
Peter L. Gordon
Priscilla Patrick

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

(3-year term)

David Wajda
Frank Drake
Peter White
Anastas

S.

1995
1996
1996
1997
1997

Christo

Gregg Mikolaities

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

(3 year term)

Bonnie Goodwin
Alex Herlihy
Eleanor Stewart
Richard Kutzleb
Elizabeth White

1995
1995
1995
1996
1996
1997
1997

Robert Brown
Elizabeth K. Wentzell

CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Patricia

(3-year term)

Anderson

1995
1995
1995
1995
1996
1997

Alden Howard
Robin Hughes
James Raynes
Louise Tallman
Richard Baron

RECREATION COMMISSION
Shannon Abrams
Charles Arcidiacono

James Spink
Janet C.

Thompson

Charles Balboni

Laura MacHardy

(3-year term)

1995
1996
1996
1996
1997
1997

Term

MOSQUITO CONTROL COMMISSION

Expires

(3-year term)

1996
1997
1997

Joseph G. Mills, Jr.
Christopher S. Christo

David Dawley

SEWER COMMISSION

(3-year term)

1995
1996
1997

Robert V. O'Brien
Leon Valley
Laurence Tosi

REPRESENTATIVES TO THE GENERAL COURT
Jane

S.

John

J.

McCarthy (New

George W. Moynahan,

1996
1996

Castle)

RYE WATER DISTRICT
who

(2-year term)

Langley (Rye)

Jr.

(3 year term)

(replaced

Ron

1995

Fortier,

resigned)

Joseph Kenney
Curt Lovellette

1996
1997

RYE WATER DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT
Kenneth Aspen

LIBRARIAN

POLICE CHIEF

Kathleen Teaze

Bradley B. Loomis

WORK DIRECTOR

FIRE CHIEF

PUBLIC

Ronald M. Lima

Cornelius "Bud"

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT OFFICER

OVERSEER OF PUBLIC
WELFARE

Ronald M. Lima

Patricia

Moynahan

Wood

FOREST FIRE WARDEN

BUILDING INSPECTOR

Bruce E. Walker

William R. Jenness

RECREATION DIRECTOR

HARBOR MASTER

Therese "Tippy" Duffy

Eric Anderson

MUNICIPAL COURT

HEALTH OFFICER

Gerald F. Giles, Justice
Gerald Taube, Special Justice
Christopher S. Christo, Clerk

Gail A. Snow,

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

BEACH COMMISSIONER

Janet C.

Thompson

Kenneth Fox

10

M.D.

CEMETERY SUPERINTENDENT
Edward

J.

Ireland

TOWN HALL STAFF
Elizabeth Yeaton, Deputy

Town

Clerk/Tax Collector

Town

Therese Zartarian, Assistant

Clerk/Tax Collector

Joan Dawley, Secretary, Building Inspector

-

Planning Board

Jeanne Cronin, Selectmen's Secretary
Patricia

Adams, Bookkeeper

Anne Morrissey,
Mary Lou

Secretary to the Sewer

Commission

Miller, Clerical

Walter Parenteau, Clerk of the Works, Sewer Department

11

SELECTMEN'S REPORT
The

Board of Selectmen is to provide the best services for the
most efficient manner and at the lowest possible cost. It
is a very difficult "balancing act" between the varying requirements of the
taxpayers and Town's overall ability to pay.
stated goal of the

taxpayers of

Rye

in the

There are a several points of view as

to

how Rye

should proceed in the future

including:

-

Keeping Rye as it is with little or no growth.
Modernizing the Town and keeping up with all of the modern service

-

Striking a balance between "past, present and future".

-

requirements.

is a very attractive place to live from many points of view including
geographic location (including our beaches), low taxes, good services and
schools. The fact that the Town is so attractive cause all of us problems. We
have seen a "building boom" in Rye that has already placed a financial burden
on the schools and is creating demand for more Town services. These increased
costs causes our tax rate to increase more than all of us would like.

Rye

is attempting to strike a balance between what Rye has been and Rye
of the future.
First and foremost, we have to consider the needs and
requirements of the citizens, translating these inputs to a budget that keeps our

The Board

taxes as low as possible.

Board received a great deal of input regarding use of land, either
Town or available to the Town. Many citizens believe that the
Town should acquire more land to keep our open space and keep the "look and
feel" of the Town much as it has been. To this end, this Board has been actively
In 1994, the

owned by

the

involved in the proposed purchase of the Parsonage property in the center of Rye.
have also worked with the Conservation Commission to discuss acquisition

We

of other land for the Town.

Rye want to maintain
support that position and
continue to seek other land that can be added in the future to keep our "open
It is

clear to the

un-built

Town

Board

that the majority of the citizens of

land in

its

original condition.

We

space".

and a great deal of discussion by the Board, we believe
by modernizing its present municipal buildings
than spending on any new construction. The Board believes that there is no need
for spending on a "municipal complex" as has been proposed in the past. Our
present buildings, with modernization, will serve us well and efficiently for years
to come.

Based on
the

Town

citizen input
is

much

better served

Our four year Town Hall

rebuild program

12

is

in its

second year with a new heating

system, rebuilt offices to accommodate not only the present

Town employees

but

Sewer Department. The computer network was expanded so that all
departments in Town Hall are now connected to commonly used software. We
now have modern offices that are efficient and provide the necessary security for
the

Town's books and records.

the

After several different plans,
Station and greatly improve

allow housing of

all

of our

we

fire

elected to modernize the present central Fire

exterior appearance.

its

completed by the end of 1995

will be

Interior modifications will

apparatus in a more efficient manner. This project
at a

modest

cost.

We

are pleased to report that the Town ended 1994 under budget by some
$135,672. The final unrestricted surplus at the end of 1994 was $486,308. The
preliminary report from our auditors indicate that the Town is in excellent
financial condition

and the financial accounting systems are operating very well.

The Town

instituted a new medical insurance program for all town employees in
reduce benefit costs. After our first full year of operation, we were able
to realize savings of $13,137 while still offering the same level of insurance
coverage. The medical insurance premium for 1995 will only increase 2%.

1994

We

to

same level as 1994 or less. This is
approximately $121,000 as the Town's share
of the net sewer bond payments voted at the 1994 Town Meeting.
are planning the 1995 budget to be at the

in the face of an additional cost of

some confusion about the control that the Board of Selectmen have over
town spending and the tax rate. The Board of Selectmen, by state law,
can only control the basic town spending such as fire, police, highway and other
There

is

the total

municipal services.
districts

We

are not involved with the schools, water district or other

within the Town.

While the Board

budgets or spending priorities for these other

Your property
-

-

To

tax

is

made up of

three or

sets the tax rate,

it

does not

set the

entities.

more major components:

Town

budget
School budget
County budget
Various water and village districts/precincts budgets

obtain a total picture of

all

Town

expenditures, you should review the reports

and budgets of each entity and attend,

if

possible, the meetings held

by the

various units involved.

During 1994, we had a complete revaluation of all public utilities including
electric, water, telephone and cable. The overall Town valuation increased by
some $14,261,875 of which the utility valuation increase represented over
$5,000,000.
In June 1994,

we completed

a two year labor agreement with the Fire and Police

13

union.

The agreement was

ratified at a special

Town Meeting

in

September.

This agreement resulted in considerable savings in operation of both departments
with respect to labor costs, especially overtime.

The Board authorized a $4,000
Legal issues and costs increased in 1994.
expenditure on the beach issue alone. The number of legal issues arising out of
property valuation. Planning Board and Board of Appeals decisions continue to

As our

rise.

buildable land decreases,

we

expect more appeals of local decisions

regarding land use.
the major issues facing the Board during 1994 was "beach access".
Senator Cohen introduced legislation that would guarantee access to our beaches
in the future. This legislation was referred to the New Hampshire Supreme Court
for clarification of law. The Court generally ruled in favor of the Town's position.
A revised bill will be presented in 1995. In the meantime, the Board will
continue to monitor the entire beach access issue.

One of

We
ten

continue to work on parking and speed control in the beach area. Another
Rye permit parking places were created near the Harbormaster Restaurant at

Wallis Sands.

We

are

working with the

state

concerning on street parking and

safety.

As part of our long range planning, major road work was done in 1994 to the
some of the main access roads in the Town. We will continue this program as
funds allow to insure that we keep our roads in good condition.
The State has approved our
More work will be done in 1995 to complete the final
plan. In the meantime, we are attempting to secure clay from the Boston "Big
Dig" on a cost free basis to use as a cap for the landfill. The Board is working
with Senator Gregg's office to secure some of the clay from the Boston project.
If this occurs, we will save considerable costs in the final closure.
The Grove Road

Landfill closure process continues.

preliminary plan report.

a new fifteen year cable agreement with Continental
new agreement, we were able to secure some $10,000 worth of

The Board negotiated
Cable.

In the

satellite receiving equipment for our schools as well as set up a plan
town cable interconnect between all town facilities. The contract calls for
Continental to upgrade the system to 78 channels by June 1995.

video and
for a

MANDATORY IN THE TOWN OF
RYE WHETHER YOU RECYCLE YOURSELF OR USE A PRIVATE SERVICE!

Every year, we mention recycling! IT IS

even more important as the costs of trash removal increases. The
was $159,534, or over $.30 per $1,000
valuation on your property taxes. The more we recycle, the less our cost of
Recycling

is

cost of trash disposal alone in 1994
disposal.

The Town Recycling Center instituted a new paper recycling system in early
1994. The Town can now recycle most all types of paper including magazines.

We

also recycle tin cans.

Contact the recycling center for a

14

full list

of items

that can be recycled.

Our Town employees

are a major asset to providing the many excellent services
Rye. This year they are all to be commended for their hard
work and excellent service to our community. The Board thanks all of you for
your dedication and support throughout 1994.
to the citizens of

always seeking volunteers for various Town boards and
would like to thank all those who have served on these boards
and commissions during 1994. If you want to serve, please contact Janet

The Board

is

We

commissions.

Thompson

at

Town

Hall.

Board of Selectmen welcome your input. We want it and need it.
on Monday night, 6:30 PM in the Town
Hall. Come and visit and join in your town government. You can witness and
become involved in the decision making process. If you have a particular item
that you would like to discuss, call the Selectmen's office at 964-5523 and ask to
be placed on the agenda. The agenda is published by Noon on Friday so call in
advance of that time to be placed on the following Monday night's meeting.

As always,

the

Sometimes

it

gets lonely at our meetings

Respectfully submitted,

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Martin

S.

Quirk, Chairman

Edward H.

Herlihy, Vice

Joseph G. Mills,

Chairman

Jr.
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BUDGET COMMITTEES REPORT
The Budget Committee has held meetings over the past year to set up ground
The Committee met during December of

rules for review of the 1995 Budget.

1994, January and February of 1995 to review the 1995 Budget.

Every attempt

was made to hold down costs, especially employee wage increases. Town
employee raises were held to 3% or lower. The average teacher percent
increase was 5.61%. Unfortunately, the Budget Committee has no control of
these increases as they are negotiated by the School Committee.

Our goal on

Due

the Budget

Committee

is

budget at a zero level increase.
always possible.

to hold the

to extenuating circumstances this is not

Respectfully submitted,

Douglas Abrams

Chairman
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TREASURER'S REPORT
General Fund

January 1, 1994 Balance
Checking Account
Money Market Investments
Payroll Account

*

32,622.17
1,823,641.27
1

.QQQ.OQ

*

1

.857.263.44

Receipts

12,330,366.94

Disbursements

12,002,000.19

December 31, 1994 Balance
Checking Account
*
28,847.44
Money Market Investments
385,449.46
Payroll
1,000.00
N. H. Public Deposit Pool
1 .770.333.29

* 2.185.630.19

Conservation Commission
January 1, 1994 Balance
Receipts
Disbursements
December 31, 1994 Balance

*

*

44,222.35
1,156.85
50.00
45.329.20

Conservation Commission Land Acquisition
January 1 1994 Balance
Receipts
Disbursements
December 31, 1994 Balance

*

*

157,725.32
5,368.75
-0163.094 .07

Forest Fund

January 1, 1994 Balance
Receipts
Disbursements
December 31, 1994 Balance

*

343.62
38.27
-0-

*

3.31

.39

Sewerage Fund

January 1, 1994 Balance
Receipts
Disbursements
December 31, 1994 Balance

17

*

278,661.43
2,877.43
186,345.00

*

95. 193.91

Sewerage Fund Operating & Maintenance

172,466.89

*

1, 1994 Balance
Rece p ts
Tax Col lector

January
i

Treasurer
Bond Rebate
Town Bond Payment
Federal Payment
State Grants
Transfer from Capital

381 .680.62
15,401 .72

34.733.30
51,678.00
31,510.00
244,545.00
136,345.00

Fund

799,988.66

Disbursements
December 31,

Town

o-f

Rye, Escrow - Park Construction

*

January 1, 1994 Balance
Receipts
Disbursements
December 31, 1994 Balance
Town

o-f

o-f

11,506.32
164.43
11,670.75
-0-

Rye, Escrow - JT&C Construction
*

January 1, 1994 Balance
Receipts
Disbursements
December 31, 1994 Balance
Town

318.371 .87

*

1994 Balance

Rye,

35,510.43
120.57
35.631/00
-0-

Escrow - Midway Construction
*

January 1, 1994 Balance
Receipts
D sbursemen ts
December 31, 1994 Balance
i

1,736.62
-01,736.62
-0-

Town of Rye, Escrow - Methuen Construction

January 1, 1994 Balance
Receipts
Di sbursemen ts
December 31, 1994 Balance

&c

1,175.92
-01,175.92
-0-

Town of Rye, Escrow

January 1, 1994 Balance
Rece pts
D

i

1

,730 .08

1,800.47

sbu r seme n t s

December 31,

300.61

*

i

*

1994 Balance

230 .22

Respectfully submitted,
Barbara J. Fl ynn
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TOWN CLERK/TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT
OFFICE HOURS:

As

I

Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.
and Monday evenings from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m.

indicated in last year's report,

we

initiated the

new

mail-in registration

system in 1994. The response has been very positive. Many people are taking
advantage of their new ability to mail-in the renewals of their vehicle
registrations, and many others have said they're pleased to have received the
reminder in the mail, as well as the advance knowledge of the costs. We're very
happy to be able to offer this service!

Revenues have increased substantially in the vehicle registration area in 1994 12 percent. For those who are interested in statistics, I'm including a copy of a
record we've kept which shows the revenues generated to the Town of Rye from
vehicle registrations since 1949.

Property tax revenues also show improvement over other years in that the
uncollected taxes at year end were 5 percent less than in 1993.

Dog owners beware. There's a new Pet Overpopulation law in effect as of
January 1, 1995 which involves changes in dog licensing and penalties for
non-compliance. We advise that all dogs be licensed by April 30th in order to
avoid problems. Bring the dog's up-to-date Rabies Certificate with you when you
come

in to get the license.

We're working very hard in this office to serve the Town the very best that we
can. I remain grateful to Beth Yeaton and Terry Zartarian for their good, good
work. Thanks as well to all other town employees for their fine cooperation
throughout the year.

The

financial reports appear

on the accompanying page.

Respectfully submitted,
Jane E. Ireland

Town

Clerk/Tax Collector
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VEHICLE REGISTRATIONS
TOWN OF RYE

YEAR

1994
Registration Permits

SUMMARY
$559,174.00

Fees
Municipal Agent Fees
Total Motor Vehicle Fees
Title

2,338.00
12,922.50

$ 574,434.50

Dog Licenses

2,655.50

Miscellaneous:

UCC

Filings

2,038.11

Marriage Licenses
Certified Copies
Filing Fees
Dredge and Fill Permits

Town

1,890.00
1,630.00

17.00

192.00
84.00

Seal

Agreement
Record Search Fees
Total Miscellaneous
Articles of

10.00

20.00
$

Remitted to Treasurer

5,881.11

$ 582,971.11
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:

FOR THE MUNICIPALITY OF

TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT
MS-61
RYE
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31. 1994

Levy for
Year of this
Report
DR.

UNCOLLECTED TAXES
-BEG. OF YEAR*:

Property Taxes
Resident Taxes
Land Use Change
Yield Taxes

Utilities
INVENTORY PENALTIE S

TAXES COMMITTED
-THIS YEAR:
Property Taxes

Resident Taxes
Land Use Change
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OVERPAYMENT
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Interest Collected
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Land Use Change
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PENALTIES

TOTAL CREDITS
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-THIS YEAR:
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OVERPAYMENT:
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SEWER

Interest Collected
on Delinquent Tax

Collected Resident
Tax Penalties
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1994
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YEAR ENDING
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REMITTED TO TREAS
DURING FY:
Property Taxes

.
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Yield Taxes
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Interest

Penalties
SEWER
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Abatements Made:
Property Taxes
Resident Taxes
Land Use Change
Yield Taxes

Utilities

Curr.Levy Deeded
SEWER

UNCOLLECTED TAXES
-END OF TEAR:
Property Taxes
Resident Taxes
Land Use Change
Yield Taxes

Utilities
SEWER

TOTAL CREDITS

MS-61
DECEMBER 31, 1994

s
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TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT
FOR THE MUNICIPALITY OF
Last Year
DR.

Unredeemed Liens
Balance at Beg.
of Fiscal Yr.
Liens Executed
During Fiscal Yr

Interest & Costs
Coll. After Lien
Execution
REFUNDED

MORTGAGEE FEES

TOTAL DEBITS

CR.

REMITTANCE TO
TREASURER:
Redemptions

Int./Costs(After
Lien Execution)
MORTGAGEE FEES

Abatements of
Unredeemed Taxes
FEES

Liens Deeded
To Municipalities

Unredeemed Liens
Bal. End of Year
TOTAL CREDITS

RYE
'

MS-61

YEAR EMDING

DECEMBER 31. 19 9A

POLICE CHIEF'S REPORT
Despite several setbacks throughout the year it was a positive year for the PoHce
Department. We continue to make progress in equipment and training and have
set the stage to

continue this progress into the coming year.

The most significant changes have been in the area of personnel. We hired 6
new part time people to replace officers who have left over the last couple of
years.

Larry Severance retired after 23 years with the department. We immediately
who had just gone through our hiring process. Brian
showed himself to be an outstanding candidate and was already a certified
officer.
Brian has also shown himself to be an asset to the town and the
hired Officer Brian Dejoy

department.
Sgt.

He

has assimilated very quickly.

Tim Richards sudden
Doing

departure in Aug. was a surprise and

a tremendous job of filling that hole

left a

big hole in

Kevin Walsh.
Kevin took a lateral transfer to Rye PD from Newmarket PD having been a Sgt.
with Newmarket. Kevin has had a positive impact on the department in a very
the department.

is

Sgt.

short time.

would like to thank Webster in Rye for a $2000 donation they made to the dept.
The money was used towards the purchase of bulletproof vests for all the officers.
I

I

would also

like to

thank Red Reynolds of Rye Autobody for putting the

new

decals on our vehicles.

The statistics remain fairly close to last years with a few significant differences.
Accidents are at their lowest level since 1978. Assault arrests, particularly
domestic related are up significantly this year. The number of motor vehicle
stops is also up which has resulted in increases in operating after suspension,
drug, and habitual offender arrests.
Out of the budgets under police department control approximately $15,000 was
The dept. took in approximately $33,000 in revenue and
we have presented a 1995 operating budget that is 2 percent below last years.
turned back to the town.

As of this writing the Rye Police Department is being dispatched by
Rockingham County Sheriffs office. For emergencies call 964-5521. The
non-emergency number is 964-5522. This will be answered at the police
department between 8 AM and 4:30 PM, after 4:30 PM it is answered by
Rockingham County

Hours worked:

Sheriffs office.

Loomis 1974

Schuppert 8

Colbeth 1694, 141

Goffl712

OT

Mills 318

Stokel 423
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OT
OT
Sousa 1784, 172.5 OT
Tompkins 1780, 230.5 OT
Severance 888, 58 OT
Peirce 1800, 309 OT
Dejoy 1063, 127 OT
Walsh 522, 64 OT

Maddocks 56

Richards 1018, 210
Scippa 1754,271.5

Milbury 427
Morrison 61.5
Canity 360
Kendall 348.5
Sheehy 89
Engle 671.5
Dolan 246

MacKenzie 521.5
Activity reported:

46 Domestics

39 criminal mischief

6 death investigations
402 alarms

9 assaults
10 criminal trespass

82 accidents

10 criminal threat

754 aid

94 Juv. chins

to citizens

7 Juv. del.
2 abuse/neglect

651 aid other agencies
278 animal related
15

Arrests:

summons

(animal)

littering

611 parking tickets

476 MA^ summons
437 other calls for svc

5 bad checks

68

3 int.w/custody

11 burglary

21 indecent exposure

thefts

44 harassment

1

stalking

162 suspicious activity

1

sexual assault

16 assault(9 domestic related)
1 bad checks
8 warrant

OAS
15DWI

22

9
2
2
2

drug related
habitual offender

disobeying

off.

reckless op.

1

criminal threat

1

resisting detent

1

receiving stolen prop

1

theft

3 harassment

12 alcohol related

Revenue:

1

7 warnings (animal)
1915 MA^ warnings

$ 2,911

Court Fines
Parking Fines
Pistol Permit
Witness Fee Reimbursement
Outside Details
DWI Patrol Crant
Training Crant
Report Copies

10,215

528
1,755

15,931
1,275

777
472

TOTAL
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$ 33,864

FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT
The

Fire

& EMS

Department was kept busy again

this year.

The department did

Several minor fires occurred this year,

not experience any major fires this year.

but again quick action and response by the department kept these fires minor in
nature.

Again

I

strongly feel that this

is

Inspection and Fire Prevention programs.
reins of the Fire Prevention Division.

due

to

our effective and efficient Fire

FF David Kornechuk took over

David has spent numerous hours

the

in the

Schools and Day Care Centers, teaching fire safety. The Insurance Service
Organization conducted a survey of the Department for Fire Insurance Rating. I
am happy to say the department was able to reduce our classification from a
Class 6 to a Class 5. We hope over the next couple of years to reduce it to a
Class 3 or 4, which will mean a reduction in fire insurance to all Rye residents.
The Inspection Division again had a busy year with 238 Inspections and 154

Permits issued.

The department continues to train on a monthly basis on every aspect of
firefighting. The Call Department has increased to 25 members, 21 of which are
Certified Firefighters,

The

who back-up

the full-time personnel during an Incident.

issue of space, to keep the fire equipment, has been addressed the past year

and a positive step

is

being taken to alleviate this problem.

FIRE STATISTICS
Alarm Activations

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR'S REPORT
During the second year as the Emergency Management Director, we continue to
enhance our capabilities to deal with natural disasters and technical hazards.
We did not experience any disasters this past year; however, there were several
The Town
possibilities for major floods and high winds this past year.
participated in a three month long drill with the Seabrook Nuclear Plant, which
is required by the Federal Emergency Management Agency every three years.

graded exercise and the Town of Rye did
who have never been involved. I
continue to negotiate with Seabrook for funds to enhance Emergency
Management in the Community.
In

December, there was

a

exceptionally well, even having personnel

Respectfully submitted,

Ronald M. Lima

Emergency Management Director
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EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES REPORT
The

Department has just completed its 2nd
Emergency Medical Services

year of providing
Rye.
Response times continue to be an average of 4 to 6 minutes. Since taking over
the Emergency Medical Services in December of 1992 many steps have been
taken to deliver the most advanced Pre-hospital Care possible while maintaining
the cost far below original proposals from other sources. The EMS Division has
grown from 3 Basic EMT's in 1992 to its present level which consists of 3
Paramedics, 3 Intermediates and 19 EMT Basic Semi-Auto Defib certified. The
service is now licensed at the Advanced Life Support status.
Fire

Pre-hospital Care and

full

to the residents of

The EMT's continue

to train twice a month to keep their skill levels, in order to
maintain their proficiency, in Emergency Medical Services.
Again for the
second year in a row the EMS Service received an award from Portsmouth
Regional Hospital in the area of Outstanding Achievement.

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES STATISTICS
Ambulance

Calls

Mutual Aid Received

Mutual Aid Given

269
9

Respectfully submitted,

Ronald M. Lima
Fire Chief
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5

PUBLIC

WORKS DIRECTORS REPORT

The Town of Rye Highway Department reclaimed,
of the roads

Sagamore Road - Morgan Court
4,490'Lx 24'W cost $72,551

1.

Wallis Road

2.

and repaved sections

rebuilt,

listed.

-

Grange Park

to

Route lA

to Lang's

Corner including intersection

at

Lang's Corner
5,900'L X 24'W cost $99,185

Washington Road
Lane to Route 1

3.

4,300'L X 24'
1,200'L X 24'

-

Dow

Lane

to

446'L X

15'

overlay

Dow

}

Church Road-Route lA

5.

1"

W complete}
W overlay both cost $77,887

Causeway and old Locke Roads
2,038'L X 22'W cost $26,905

4.

Grove Road including

to

-

complete

end of Sewer Project

W cost $3,193
TOTAL COST: $279,721

Shim and overlay paving was done on
South Road-Rye Precinct's line
4,790'Lx 22'W cost $18,931
Old Beach Road

1.

2.

to

West Road including

intersection

2,775'L X 22'W cost $11,637
Fern Avenue - Washington Road to Grove Road
2,900'L X 21'W cost $12,528
Pollack Drive700'L x 29'W cost $4,918

3.

4.

A

the following roads:

total

applied,

The

of 44,898 square yards were reclaimed, 34,052 gallons of liquid calcium
and 9,591 tons of hot top laid for a total expenditure of $327,735.

intersection of Wallis Road,

redesigned and

made

Approximately

1,100 feet of pipe

a four (4)

Sagamore Road, and Long John Road was

way STOP.
with catch basins were installed on Wallis Road

prior to repaving project. Additional drainage

system, and a more solid cover was

made

was added

to

South Road drainage

for the outfall catch basin.

Crack sealing was done on a number of roads where needed.
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The Rye Recycle Center processed

PRODUCT

the following items:

TOWN OF RYE RECYCLE INCOME FOR
PRODUCT
OCC(cardboard)

TONS

$PER/TON

AVG

1994

TOTAL

SWAP SHOPPE VOLUNTEER'S REPORT
The Rye Recycling

"Swap Shoppe" continues to offer Rye residents
Clothing and other materials received are sorted as
to type, hung, or displayed for ready access.
Examples are household items,
toys, books, magazines, sports equipment, patterns, remnants, shoes, and more!
Station's

items of almost every kind.

The Swap Shoppe operates with virtually no cost to the Town, adds to the
Town's recycling income, monetarily benefits all using citizens, and simplifies
work at the Station. All items in the Swap Shoppe are free, and Rye residents
are urged to take as much as they want! Items not taken must be disposed of
weekly, as follows, since incoming items would quickly overwhelm the Swap
Shoppe's small area.

Every Monday, we put the Swap Shoppe

in order, haul metal items, loose

items, cartons, etc. with our truck to Station storage locations.

paper
This recycled

makes one or two truckloads weekly. Then, we bag, clothing mostly,
and distribute it to Operation Blessing, Goodwill, Family Services, Birthright,
Rockingham County Jail, Crossroads House, Coats for Kids, national disaster
material

victims, etc.

The Textile and Loose Paper programs beginning March, 1994 required bagging
and sorting these products, and delivery to Station storage. In six months, we
recorded one hundred and ten (110) full bags of textile items. Many hundreds of
pounds of paper items were also collected from the Swap Shoppe. A new sign at
the entrance to the Swap Shoppe lists items that are unacceptable. Residents
are asked to observe these limitations since those items are to be taken to the

iron pile or the container, resulting in loss of fees to the

As

Town

of Rye.

the various types of recycling programs begin and succeed at the Station,

Swap Shoppe

we

proud to aid and be part of what we believe is one of the
most advanced Recycling Stations anywhere. If anything could improve the
Swap Shoppe, it would be even more Rye folks benefitting by selecting more of
in the

are

the free items.

Respectfully submitted,
Phyllis T. Grunert

Volunteer
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BUILDING INSPECTOR'S REPORT
The Town of Rye

first provided for a full time building inspector in 1984 in
response to increasing workload and code complexity. In that year, $12,794.00
in building permit fees added $4,373,374 in potential valuation. The ensuing ten
years have witnessed continuing escalation on both accounts. In 1994, issuance
of 283 building permits totaling $36,965 in fees represents a potential added
property valuation in excess of $7,302,940.

Fees and valuations aside, my first priority remains life safety which, in turn,
relies upon adherence to building codes and ordinances throughout all phases of
construction.
In addition to our

own

Building Code, Zoning Ordinance and Planning Board

Land Development Regulations, I must insure adherence to National Building
Codes adopted by the Town, FEMA regulations, NH Energy Code, NH DES rules
regarding sewage and NH Wetlands Board Administrative Rules, the Shoreland
Protection Act, Rye Water District, and Hampton Water Company rules and
other miscellaneous requirements such as State Health Regulations, NH RSA's
and the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Through the permitting process,

I coordinate requirements for test pit approval,
system design, review of zoning regulations, BOA and/or Planning Board
records, structural and site plan reviews plus applicable State and Federal

septic

regulations.
is issued, my schedule includes inspection of concrete
foundation before waterproofing, framing, structural, electrical,
plumbing, chimney(s) and fireplace(s) prior to closure of smoke shelf and
chamber. A minimum of eight inspections and a Certificate of Occupancy are

Once

a building permit

footings,

required per site for

new

construction.

new or remodeling, results in correction and
This process benefits homeowners, renters, legitimate

Failure to meet code, whether
additional inspections.
builders and craftspeople.

The Town

as a

whole benefits

and

litigation

local builders, business people,

and the

as the potential for fire, accident,

are all reduced.

The cooperation of State agencies,
citizens of Rye is greatly appreciated.
Respectfully submitted,

William R. Jenness
Building Inspector
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RECREATION COMMISSION'S REPORT
Rye Recreation Department set its focus on providing services to the
community for the children and parents, and for the benefit of
Rye residents in general. The well being, education, and development of the
In 1994, the

families of the

children and families

is

very important to the Recreation Commission.

This year, the Recreation Department provided a great summer playground
program for children ages 3-12 years. Approximately, 120 children attended and
participated in various theme days, field trips, arts and crafts, and just plain fun.
The goal of our Summer Playground Program is to encourage the individual's
personal independence, and a greater level of self-sufficiency in the group
setting.
Staffers assisted the children in learning how to play together, what
appropriate behavior is, and what will not be accepted by other children and
Social skills are crucial to acceptance by others and ultimately to the
adults.
development of friendships.

"Soccerdimensions" Soccer Camp is forever growing from year to year. This
year over 130 children attended. Mike Noonan, UNH's Men's Soccer Coach,
soccer players and coaches from various countries worked with the children
on soccer skills and creating a fun learning atmosphere. Once again, due to the
large number of children in attendance, both the Rye Recreation Area and
Parsons Field were utilized. The Rye Recreation Commission is very pleased to

UNH

offer this

program

through 16 years of age.

to the children ages 5

has opened the doors for

many

Soccer camp

children to take part in our fall youth soccer

program.

Rye Youth Soccer was bigger than ever
kindergarten through grade 6 were seen

and learning

who

how

to play soccer.

1994.
Over 230 children in
Recreation Area kicking, passing,
thanks to all of the parents and friends

Many

volunteered their time to the children.

big program successful.
fields, building

in

at the

It

takes

many hands

to

make such

a

Parents could be found selling coffee and donuts, lining

soccer nets, coaching, and on and on.

This year's July 4th Celebration was a huge success. Hundreds of people turned
out to listen to the sounds of the seacoast's own band, "The Spectras" which was
once again followed by a spectacular fireworks display. Thank you to Mr. Jack

Tobey

for his very generous donation of fireworks

Our annual Teddy

Bears' Picnic

was

and

great!

registered by their loving owners, children of

his time.

Over 100 Teddy Bears were
all ages!
There was food,

and a special parade in honor of Smokey the Bear's
were fortunate to have Smokey there to blow out the candles
on his birthday cake which was made and donated by Mrs. Charlene Woods,
storyteller Loris Burbine,

50th birthday.

We

Rye. Thank you!
This year the Recreation department sponsored a new event at Thanksgiving
time.
Our First Annual "Turkey Shoot" had a tremendous turnout. Over 75
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children in grades

1

through 8 took part in this basketball free throw contest. The
which was distributed to needy families in Rye. We

participants donated food

look forward to

this

event next year.

Over 30
its second "Babysitting Clinic".
learned "hands on" how to care for children of all ages.
Babysitters learned various aspects of safety, CPR, basic first aid, how to
Anyone interest in finding a babysitter can
interact and play with children.
contact the Recreation Department at 603-964-6281.

The Recreation Department offered
boys and

girls

feels that 1994 was a tremendous year of growth for
were able to touch many lives and our various programs
the following programs were offered to the community, and we hope to continue
providing a wide variety in the future. Programs included the Fishing Derby,
Fitness Classes, Co-ed Volleyball, Women's Basketball and Softball, field trips
to Boston, Yoga, Country Line Dancing, Fitness Gourmet, Christmas Parade,
Santa Calling, and Seniorcise.

The Recreation Commission
recreation in Rye.

We

The Recreation Commission worked hard

this

year trying to provide quality

programs for the community. Thanks to the many volunteers who gave their
time. A special thank you to Anneliese Fisher who was there anytime something
was needed. If anyone has a talent to share or would like to learn more about
the Recreation Department's programs, please call 603-964-6281.
Respectfully submitted,

Charles Arcidiacono

Chairman
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BEACH COMMISSIONER'S REPORT
We

are pleased to report again as

we had no drownings and no

we have

for the past thirteen (13) years, that

summer. The good weather
brought large crowds to our beaches, and once again our very capable lifeguards
were successful in maintaining a perfect safety record. The water temperature
reached 71 degrees on July 17th (this usually occurs the first week in August),
and went down hill from there. We never got above 68 degrees the balance of
the

Our

serious injuries this past

summer.
efforts to educate the public about the dangers of inflatables

was

greatly

enhanced when we were asked to speak on the subject to the Rye Elementary
School on the last day before summer vacation. We spoke of the dangers of
using inflatables when the wind is off shore and also explained to them our new
signal flag system which we instituted very successfully this past summer.
When they see the red flag displayed on the lifeguard chair, it means off shore
wind, and no inflatables are allowed and when the flag is down, it is okay to use
them.
We also explained that "Boogey Boards" are a better alternative to
inflatable, and are almost never banned except during extremely rough surf.

We

want to thank Police Chief Brad Loomis for loaning us three (3) police
one for each beach. This was the first time in thirteen (13) years that our
lifeguards had direct communication with all departments of safety right at their
radios,

stands.

Plans for the future include:
1.

2.

To install a bicycle rack
To maintain the existing

A

special "thank you" to everyone

to

keep them clean and

at Pirate's

Cove Beach.

safety record.

who

visits

our beaches for their help in trying

safe.

Should you have any suggestions you feel would be helpful, please write to me
Town Hall, 10 Central Road, Rye, NH 03870, or call me at home at

at the

603-436-4484.
Respectfully submitted,

Ken Fox
Beach Commissioner
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LIBRARY DIRECTOR'S REPORT
Throughout 1994 the Rye Public Library was a very busy place. Business
numbers of residents using the library, as well
as the numbers of new families moving to town. Access to various computerized

reflected the ongoing increase in

databases, including the Internet, has allowed the staff to serve patrons better
the time. In Adult Services

we had

several successful programs.

all

In cooperation

with Webster at Rye we presented a Reading/discussion series called "Family
Scrapbooks" funded by the New England Foundation for the Humanities, which
was specially developed for seniors. Participants saw videos, read stories and
books and discussed them with one another. This was so successful that, aided
by funding from the New Hampshire Humanities Council, a summer program
called "Humor Here and There" was held so that the participants could continue
In November we hosted a reading/discussion
to meet and discuss literature.

program on Peyton Place by Grace Metalious which was also very well received.
During 1994, business in the Children's room was booming— at times even
frenetic—as growing numbers of Rye's young people used their public library for
their informational and recreational needs and attended programs of interest to
them. A second weekly session for PARENTS AND 2- YEAR OLDS was added
in order to accommodated the demand: with approximately 20 people at each of
average of 8 children attended each of 67 STORYHOURS for
and
Five daughters and their moms came to the
The "GO
DISCUSSIONS, held in the spring.
DAUGHTERS
UNDERCOVER WITH BOOKS" SUMMER READING PROGRAM kept 180
Many volunteers were
children "mysteriously" occupied during vacation.
involved in a large-scale Scavenger Hunt at Odiorne Sate Park to wind up the
summer program. THURSDAY EVENING FAMILY HOURS featured special
LYN RAY; bat expert THOMAS COWLAND; BOB
guests: author
TUTTLE, on the Isles of Shoals murders; RAINBOW THE CLOWN; Detective
BROWNIE
JOHN SCIPPA; folk singers JULIE
MACINTOSH; and storyteller CLAUDIA ALTEMUS.
31 programs.
ages 3 to 6.

An

MOMS

BOOK

MARY

THOMPSON AND

Items Checked Out

LIBRARY TRUSTEES REPORT
First full year using

our automated system. Not one day down during year. Good
from clerical procedures to helping patrons to find what

results in releasing staff

they need.

Better track of overdue items.

Library staff has access to Internet which allows them to expand their searching
needed by patrons and to request them through

capabilities to find items

interlibrary loan or other methods.

Building Addition progress.

Preliminary drawings obtained for addition utilizing

Old Parsonage property.

Thanks to our excellent staff for providing such good service:
Susan Laun, Assistant Director and Head of Youth Services
Marjorie Little, Adult Services Librarian
Patricia Quinn, Adult Services Librarian
Pam Jautaikis, Adult Services Librarian
Jennifer Sanborn, Children's Services Librarian
Stefania Metalious, Page
and Bob Kates, Custodian

Our

Irene Maskvv^a and Annie Kucharski. The
Margaret Gray, as always, provided needed
Driftwood Garden Club deserves thanks for

faithful volunteers included

Friends of the Library, headed by

help and support. The Rye
keeping our windowboxes beautifully

filled all

Respectfully submitted,

Mark Epply
Chairman
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year-round.

PLANNING BOARDS REPORT
During 1994, there were seven new building lots approved by the Planning Board
and one street. One building lot on South Road was approved for Charles Rand,
Jr.; two lots on Wallis Road for the Estate of Marion Rand; and four lots on a
new street, Victory Lane, for Glenn and Prudence Trefethen. In addition, the
Trefethens will convey a 20 acre parcel to the Rye Conservation Commission.
There were two lot line adjustments approved, one between Adams and Rinck on
Ocean Boulevard and one between Sponaugle and Brown on Central Road. One
site review of a building at Lang's Corner was approved.
Several projects were reviewed in the conceptual stage, including various
The most recent location under
for a new Rye Post Office.
consideration is on a portion of the Philbrick Family Farm on Central Road.
However, no firm proposal has yet been submitted for any specific location.
locations

In the preliminary stages of site review on Route #1
restaurant, 6,800 square feet retail

is

and recreational

a proposal for a

200

seat

facility including batting

cages.

The Shoreland Protection Act became
year.

effective in

its

entirety

on July 1 of this
is termed the

All land within 250 feet of the highest observable tide line

"protected shoreland".

The

full text

of this Act and other related information

is

available in the Office of the Building Inspector.

Zoning amendments recommended by the Planning Board and adopted by the
voters at the March 1994 Town meeting include an amendment and definitions to
regulate adult bookstores; a provision that special exceptions granted by the
Board of Adjustment would expire after 5 years if unused; a zoning map change
to make all of Route 1 commercial and an amendment to the Floodplain
Ordinance as required by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

Work

continues on the Master Plan update. The Board's goal is to have
completed in 1995. Public hearings will be held before the final version
accepted and printed. As always, public participation is welcome.
Respectfully submitted,

James D. Brown
Vice Chairman
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it

is

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS REPORT
The Board of Adjustment consists of five (5) Selectmen appointed members:
Chairman, David Wajda; Vice Chairman, Peter White; Clerk, Anastas S.
Christo; Frank Drake; and Gregg Mikolaities. The alternates are Betty Menson,
Glenn Trefethen, and Lee Seaver.

The

duties and powers of the

delineated in the

Board are prescribed by NH State Law and
Mostly, the Board hears three (3)

Rye Zoning Ordinance.

types of appeals:
to authorize upon appeal, in specific cases, variances from the terms
of the ordinance, provided that all five of these conditions can be met:

Variances

A.

:

The variance could be granted without diminishing

the value of abutting

property;

B.

Granting the variance would be of benefit to the public

C.

Denial of the variance would result in unnecessary hardship to the owner
because of unique features of the land

interest;

;

D.

Granting the variance would do substantial justice;

E.

The variance could be granted without
Exceptions

Special

:

violating the spirit of the ordinance.

to decide special exceptions to the

specially delineated in the ordinance.

The granting of

ordinance which are

a special exception

is

a

matter of right, not a privilege, provided that the request is not injurious or
detrimental to the neighborhood, is in harmony with the general purpose and
intent of the ordinance, and meets all the rules and requirements for that
exception.

Appeals
to hear appeals from administrative decisions where it is alleged
Zoning Administrator (Building Inspector) has incorrectly applied terms of
:

ordinance.
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the
the

The Board heard 25

petitions in 1994 as follows:

Granted Denied Withdrawn

22 Variances

CONSERVATION COMMISSION'S REPORT
1994 has been a very productive and busy year. There have been twenty-five
(25) wetland applications submitted which require conservation review. Most of
these require site inspection and discussion with the owner and engineer. This is
an important part of the conservation year because each application has to be
reviewed and our recommendations forwarded to the NH Wetlands Board within
fourteen (14) days.

The Rye Conservation Commission members adopted

the following Mission

Statement:

The Rye Conservation Commission is committed to the protection and
proper utilization of Rye's natural resources. The commission will serve as
gatekeeper for environmental concerns in the Town of Rye and act as
advisor to other municipal boards. The commission will be a resource for
information about Rye's natural resources and environmental welfare.

We

were sorry that Kennard Lang's job required him to resign from the
Conservation Commission.
This year we were fortunate to have Deborah
Johnson become the secretary and also an alternate member, Deborah Taylor
and Richard Gustafson also bring experience and genuine interest in
conservation as new alternates. The dedication of the Conservation Commission
members and alternates has made the year one that Rye should be pleased with.

Members

attended other town Planning and Board of Adjustment meetings

if

Five members attended an
Environmental Management Workshop in Newington with presentations by the
Audubon Society of NH, Society for the Protection of NH Forests, Great Bay
Watch, Soil Conservation Service and
Cooperative Extension Service. We
also took part in the workshop on the new minimum expedited wetland
applications that became effective on September 30, 1994.
The graduate
items concerning wetland issues were on the agenda.

UNH

program

NH

has completed two (2) salt marsh restoration
members. After the first study members installed
test wells to monitor the salinity level in the marsh at Locke Road.
With
matching grant funds from Fish and Wildlife the wetland application was
completed. With the assistance of the Rye DPW a proper culvert is being
installed off Locke Road which will effect 10.6 acres of salt marsh. Members
removed the fallen material in the old Mill Race near the Massacre Site
affecting 8.4 acres.
From the Evaluation of Restorable Salt Marshes in NH
completed by the US Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Services, the
Rye Conservation Commission voted to submit a grant application to the New
Hampshire Coastal Program for matching funds to replace the inadequate culvert
on Locke Road. These two matching grant projects will save the Town of Rye
at the

University of

studies with the assistance of

over $20,500.

The Rye Conservation Commission is in the process of accepting wetland as
donation or gift on Ocean Boulevard, Sagamore Road, and Off Rock Orchard
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near Berry's Brook adjacent to other conservation and school land. Purchase of
land on Washington Road is also being studied. A listing from the tax maps was
completed, which lists more than 363 acres of town land and more than 288
acres of conservation land not including school,

Respectfully submitted,

James S. Raynes
Chairman
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fire,

or

DPW

land.

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION'S REPORT
The Rye Historic District includes four areas in the Town of Rye. One area
extends along Washington Road from the west end of Grange Parle to the
intersection of Central Road including 500 feet either side of the road centerline.
It also includes the State of New Hampshire Isles of Shoals islands, the Brackett
Road Massacre Site, and the Cable House located at 20 Old Beach Road.

The Commission

is

responsible for preserving the buildings within the District,

encouraging their maintenance, insuring that new structures and alterations to
existing structures are in visual harmony with their neighbors, and reviewing new
uses of land or buildings within the District. The purpose is to preserve the
history of the Town of Rye, maintain property values, foster civic beauty,
strengthen the local economy, and provide an opportunity to benefit the
education, pleasure, and welfare of all Rye citizens.

The Commission meets and

consults as needed to

fulfill its'

mission.

It

worked

closely with several groups during the design process on several projects.
project involved the redesign of the sign at

Rye Office of

the First National

One
Bank

of Portsmouth.

The Commission

feels that it is especially helpful in establishing communication
between applicants and abutters. The Rye Fire Department applied to the
Commission for an addition to and modification of the existing Fire Station. A
public meeting was held, and the abutters were personally invited to attend.
Valuable information was obtained from the abutters. The Fire Department and
Selectmen were able to directly address the concerns of the abutters. The
changes will occur over a period of two years.

The Commission continues

on issues

It had proposed
two years ago. This
year, the Rye Board of Selectmen agreed to have the signs installed.
The
Commission directed the design, manufacture, and installation of the signs. The
Commission changed the design from carved to flat, acquired the finials,
arranged for the Rye Highway Department to install the signs, and painted the
posts, thereby reducing the cost to the Town by a factor of ten.

to focus

at

Parsons Field.

directional signs for event parking and pedestrian access

The Commission is involved in land acquisition that will impact the District.
The Rye Library Board of Trustees requested advice from the Commission on the
proposed purchase of the property surrounding the Library. The Commission
participated in the public hearing on the purchase. The purchase is supported, as
it will allow expansion of the Rye Library in its' present location as well as
provide options for the Rye Fire Department.
The Commission is involved in long range planning for the Rye School District.
The Chairman was part of the Rye Schools Facility Study Committee, which
evaluated the capacity of the current school buildings and the future needs. The
Committee recommended that the present school buildings be retained
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(including the

Rye Junior High School building in the District), but they should
A Rye School building committee will be formed

be renovated and expanded.
for 1995.

The impact of
District

is

Base on the Rye Historic
The major issue is the effect of noise, as the District is
path. The Commission continues to monitor development at

the development of Pease Air Force

of concern.

directly in the flight

the former base.

The Rye Historic District Commission serves not only as a review board but also
as a forum for public comment on each project. The public is welcome to attend
all Commission meetings.
All property owners and Rye Town officials are
encouraged to review projects with the Commission from the early stages, when
changes are easiest. Major projects for 1995 will be to work with the Rye
School Building Committee and the Rye Library Board of Trustees in planning
any additions that would be required. The Commission will continue to monitor
the activities of the Pease Development Authority for the resulting effects on the
Rye Historic District. Public comments and suggestions are welcome.
Respectfully submitted,

Richard E. Kutzleb

Chairman
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TOWN OF RYE EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEE

NAME

]

Abrams, Douglas K.
*Adams, Lee J.
*Adams, Patricia G.
Bernardin, John F.
Black, Timothy
*Blaisdell,

J.

Leon C.

Boyd, Heather

S.

Bromfield, Edwin A.
Bromfield, Russell H.

Cady, Kathy

Chapman, Kimberly B.
Chase, James M.
Chichester, Madelin L.

*Colbeth, Peter C.
Corradi, Jocelyn L.

Cronin, Jeanne M.
*Dawley, Joan A.
Dawson, William W.
*DeJoy, Brian S.
DeVries, Sharon
*Dodds, David A.
Dodds, Gary Bruce

Dolan, Lisa M. Police
Doyle, Judith A.
*Duffy, Therese M.
Engle, Dale S.
Fessenden, Michael C.
Fisher, Anneliese B.

Fleming, Gary Gene
Flynn, Barbara

J.

Fontaine, Catherine A.
Garrity,

Timothy

P.

*Goff, Harriet
Greenleaf,
Herlihy,

Roy

L.

Edward H.

Hickson, Cynthia L.
Higgins, Harold
*Hill,

W.

Roy Lee

Hudachek, Jennifer A.
^Ireland,

Edward

*Ireland, Jane E.
Ireland, Jeffrey

J.

[ON/DEPARTMENT

Adam W.

Recreation Department
Adult Services Librarian

453.39
20,029.84

*Jenness, Christopher

Highway Department

36,332.56

*Jenness, William R.

Building Inspector
Cons. Comm. Secretary

34,140.63

Jackson,

Pamela E.

*Jautaikis,

Johnson, Deborah L.
Kates, Robert J.

Library Custodian

2,000.00

Kendall, Gregory C.

Police Special

4,208.65

Keyser, Joseph William

Call Firefighter

*Komechuk, David
Krespach, Judy M.

EMT

Kuchinski, Candace L.

Beach Lifeguard

Ladrie, Alan

Call Firefighter

*Laing, Steven

Lajoe, Jason M.
*Laun, Susan D.
Layton, Daniel M.
Lear, John C.
*Leary, Robert J.
Leland, Matthew M.
Liebert, Tara L
*Lima, Ronald M.
Little, Marjorie
Littlefield, Nathalie

2,674.75

280.00
43,806.29

Firefighter

J.

412.50
37,740.39
72.00

Firefighter

Call

708.76

Call EMT/Firefighter
Ass't Director/Youth Serv.

3,867.00

29,980.77

Call EMT/Firefighter

2,858.50

Call EMT/Firefighter

4,920.50

Highway Department
Beach Lifeguard

38,249.53

Recreation Department
Fire Chief
Adult Services Librarian
Town Clerical-Beach Permits

3,893.00

100.00

44,850.84
4,672.39
2,155.00

*Loomis, Bradley B.
MacKenzie, Jay A.
Maddocks, Michael E.

Police Chief

Police Special

1,026.50

Metalious, Stefanie R.

Library Page

2,688.02

Loma

Milbury,
Miller,

43,000.61

Police Special

Call EMT/Firefighter

Mary Lou

*Millett, Frederick

6,326.26

4,025.25

Selectmen's Ass't

10,229.93

Highway Department

39,722.64

Mills, Joseph G.

Selectman

3,675.00

Mills, Melissa A.

Police Special

2,415.00

Morang, Bennita

S.

Morrison, Margaret
Morrissey,

M.

Anne M.

*Moynahan, Cornelius G.
Moynahan, Jeanne M.
*Moynahan, Kenneth M.
Nelson, Karen R.
Netishen, Ellen

Newman,

Eric

M.

J.

Nickerson, Brian

W.

Planning Board Secretary
Police Special

Sewer Commission Secretary
Public

Works

Director

Crosswalk Guard
Firefighter

378.75

Call

EMT
EMT

Budget Coram Secretary

Palumbo,
*Paradis,

Paul H.

Parenteau, Walter

Election

Worker

Call Firefighter

Dawn M.
Jr.,

J.

260.00

47,292.24
978.25

Call

M.

44,176.81

Call Firefighter

Ochetto, Jodi L.
Orestis, Nikolaos

691.65
6,197.50

Recreation Department
Call EMT/Firefighter

Nye, James E.
Olson, Constance

405.00

Beach Lifeguard
Highway Mechanic
Sewer Clerk of Works
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237.00
759.00
110.00
450.00
51.00
165.00
2,921.75
34,328.42

3,810.00

John W.

Patrick,

Supervisor of Checklist

Patrolman

*Peirce,Jeffrey T.

Mark W.

Peirce,

Pepin, Michael T.

Leo Joesph

Peters,

Philbrick,

Alden W.

Powell, Sarah R.
*Quinn, Patricia R.
Quirk, Martin S.
Quirk, Paul T.
Rau, Susan M.
*Richards, Timothy B.

M.
Mark P.
Thomas H.

Police Special

150.00

EMT

192.00

Call Firefighter

105.00

Call Firefighter

1,445.00

Election

Worker

Selectman

3,675.00
1,731.75

Call

EMT

Call Firefighter

Seaver, Emily

*Severance, Larry D.

Sheehy, Elizabeth A.
Smyth, Tricia L.
Snow, M.D., Gail Ann
Snyder, Paula S.
*Sousa,

Mark A.

Squires, John C.

Stanley,

Jr.,

Kenneth

3,307.50

905.25
3,045.00

Children's Servs Librarian

Call

EMT

Police Special

Police Special

72.00

Sergeant

42,583.99
178.50

Worker

Ass't to Building Inspector

Patrolman
Animal Control Officer
Recreation Department
Health Officer
Election Worker

Stone, Christopher B.

Police Special

4,120.00

EMT/FF

Sewer Clerical
Library Director

*Thompson, Janet C.
Tibbetts, Dean Arthur
*Tompkins, Randall B.

Adm.Ass't./Spvr.of Chcklst

Tutt, Brian S.

Vento, Jennifer
Vozella Jr., Joseph
*Walker, Bruce E.

Walker, Sarah
Walsh, Kevin P.
Ward, Kenneth J.
Wharem, Jr. Robert E.
Whittet, Robert James
Wilson, David M.
Yeaton, Amanda C.

EMT

Patrolman
Call EMT/Firefighter
Recreation Department
Election

480.13
102.00

*Teaze, Kathleen A.

Call

1,473.79

40.860.60

Clerk of the Works
Police Special

6,833.92
26,328.96

2,100.00

Detective Sergeant
Police Special/Call

17,926.89

672.00
230.00
160.00

Police Special

Stokel, Joshua E.

Tate, Barbara

28,295.62

Beach Lifeguard

Election
J.

15.00

Police Sergeant

Beach Lifeguard

Semprini, Brenda

18,212.59

Call EMT/Firefighter

Ritchie,

*Sanborn, Jennifer
Sawtell, Susan A.
Sawyer, Jr., Richard E.
Schemmel, Rolf B.
Schuppert, David M.
*Scippa, John

51.00

Adult Services Librarian

Ricker, Bryan

Roberts,

450.00
40,600.57

Worker

Assistant Firefighter

957.75
4,758.76
110.00
80.00

35,020.60
36,580.19
36.00
43,503.21
5,714.25

628.39
51.00

43,930.92

Call EMTVRecreation

1,365.38

Patrolman
Call EMT/Firefighter

11.196.50

Police Special

1,972.50

120.00

Call EMT/Firefighter

5,248.50

Highway Department

2,021.26

Recreation Department
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308.01

*Yeaton, Elizabeth M.
Yeaton, Norman H.
*Zartarian,

MarkN.

Zartarian, Therese A.
Zona, Anna M.

Deputy Tax Coll/Twn Clrk
Call FF/Spvr.of Chcklst

Dty Tax Coll/Twn Clerk/ZBA

Worker

TOTAL:
*Denotes

full

1,920.00

46,533.78

Firefighter

Election

25,572.01

7,116.05

51.00

$1,561,409.27

time employees that receive
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full benefits.

HEALTH OFFICER'S REPORT
a busy and challenging one as the Health Officer. As in
previous years, I have continued to inspect local daycare facilities and to
monitor area food establishments for health violations. I also have handled
numerous health-related complaints and questions.

The year of 1994 was

began immunizing members of the police and fire departments against
immunizations were completed. Also, this year
members of the police department, the highway department, and the animal
control officer were inoculated against rabies. These individuals were chosen
because of the increased likelihood of them coming in contact with potentially
In 1993,

I

hepatitis B; this year those

rabid animals.

I

thank the Board of Selectmen, town officials and personnel, and
for their cooperation and support. I have enjoyed serving the
of Rye, and look forward to a busy and productive year ahead.

would

like to

the citizens of

Town

Rye

Respectfully submitted,
Gail

Ann Snow, M.D.

Rye Health

Officer
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WELFARE DIRECTORS REPORT
Welfare must be given to any person in a town or city who is poor and unable to
support himself, and must be maintained at the expense of the town or city of
This law reflects the duties the town's Welfare
residence per RSA 165:1.
Department must adhere to.

As

the Welfare Director responsible to the

the poor),

I

assist

them

Board of Selectmen (overseerers of

in administering the funds.

$28,924 for housing, $1,192 for medicine, $1,244 for

This past year,

utilities,

we

spent

and $2,618 for food.

This past year. Building Inspector Jenness, Fire Chief Lima, Dr. Snow, and
myself made sure our clients were living in a safe place. Every year the number
of people we assist increases, and with the discussion of welfare cut backs on
the federal and state level, I am concerned how this action will affect the Town
of Rye.
Respectfully submitted,
Patricia

Wood

Welfare Director
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TRUSTEES OF TRUST FUNDS REPORT
During the year 1994 the Trust Funds for the
the stock market.

Our

portfolios are limited

and overall the dividends continued

to

Town

of Rye performed similarly to
by each fund's investment objective

pay an exceptionally high

return.

the portfolios was limited due to market condition. The trustees
took large gains early in the year, anticipating a lower market, and invested in
short term certificates looking for good values for reinvestment purposes.

The growth of

The Cemetery Fund realized gains for the fiscal year of $34,348.51. The Rye
Public Library realized gains for the same period of $12,724.99 and the Dalton
Fund realized gains of $42,830.14. There were no sales in the Brownell Fund
last

year as this fund remains stable

at all times.

The investment objectives for each fund remain the same. Most funds are
looking for dividend income and capital gain. Several funds are limited to
insured investments and their yield remains unchanged until interest rates
increase.

The town turned over a total of $60,543.65 for the Capital Reserve Funds. The
Rye Public Library Trustees received $14,000 from the Library Construction
Capital Reserve Fund as voted by the 1994 Town Meeting.
$22,000 was
requested and expended to Selectmen from the Capital Reserve Revaluation
Fund. $24,109.32 was also dispensed to the Selectmen from the Capital Reserve
Safety Building Fund.

The Library Trust Funds earned $9,710.56 which was

transferred to the Library

Trustees as required.
All funds held in trust have been audited by the assigned
the State Department of Revenue, as required

Respectfully submitted,

TRUSTEES OF TRUST FUNDS
Christopher S. Christo

Peggy Wade
Priscilla Patrick
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by law.

town auditors and by
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TRUSTEES OF TRUST FUNDS
DETAILED STATEMENT

Library Funds
PRINCIPAL 1/1/94

102,223.13

GAIN on Sale of Stock

12,724.99

PRINCIPAL 12/31/94

114,948.12
-0-

INCOME BALANCE 1/1/94
1994 Income
Paid to Library Trustees

9,710.56
9,710.56
-0-

INCOME BALANCE 12/31/94

Miscellanecus Funds
PRINCIPAL 1/1/94

$

289,660.93

$

60,543.65

$

39,593.78

PRINCIPAL 12/31/94

$

310,610.80

INCOME BALANCE 1/1/94

$

34,752.15

Additions:
Capital Reserve - Employee Leave
1,481.78
$
Capital Reserve - Grove Rd. Landfill
44,061.87
Capital Reserve - Highway Dept. Equip. 15,000.00

Expended

Capital Reserve - Safety Building
$ 23,191.28
Capital Reserve - Library Construction 5,076.81
Capital Reserve - Revaluation
11,325.69

1994 Income

8,575.80

1994 Expended:

Capital Reserve - Library Construction
Capital Reserve - Revaluation
Capital Reserve - Safety Building
INCOME BALANCE 12/31/94
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$

8,923.19
10,674.31
918.04 $

20,515.54

$

22,812.41

SALE OF LOTS
1994

PERPETUAL
CARE

LOTS

MC CARTHY, IRENE - CEDAR LAWN E43

300.00

$

$

300.00

MACDONALD, SHIRLEY - CEDAR LAWN E43

150.00

150.00

ALVES, ABEL L.

450.00

450.00

1200.00

1200.00

1200.00

1200.00

150.00

150.00

150.00

150.00

1200.00

1200.00

THOMAS, ALMA G. - CEDAR LAWN E44

300.00

300.00

DUNTON, LENA B. - CEDAR LAWN A24

150.00

150.00

DELANEY, JAMES F. - CEDAR LAWN A18

300.00

300.00

1200.00

1200.00

BERRY, MORRIS H. & McKENNA, ALFRED & BRENDA
1200.00
DIVISION 3, LOT 53

1200.00

,

SNYDER, JOHN D.

PAULA

&

FORSBERG, JOHN D.
CULLEN, ANN C.

CEDAR LAWN C13

-

JR.

S.

,

DIV.2, A32

MARIANNE, DIV.3, A55

&

- CEDAR LAWN A87

ANDERSON, ROBERT
LAWN B50

&

BAUMANN, HANS D.

&

MARJORIE

-

CEDAR

SIGRID, DIV.2, A55

RECORD, MARY ANN - DIVISION

3,

A47

SHAY, NANCY - CEDAR LAWN E12

300.00

300.00

PUTNAM, EUGENE M. & GRACE S.
DIVISION 3, LOT A42

1200.00

1200.00

POTVIN, HELEN J. - CEDAR LAWN, A32

300.00

300.00

KERSHNER, HAROLD E - CEDAR LAWN E20

300.00

300.00

PHILBRICK, GEORGE O.
LOT 665

&

MARY - BARTLETT DIV.

,

700.00

TOTALS

$
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10050.00

10750.00

SOUTHEAST REGIONAL REFUSE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
53-B REPORT
we

This year

was held
October

held two separate Household Hazardous Waste Collections. One
Spring on May 14, 1995, and the second was held in the Fall on

in the

The

collections were held at

two locations to better serve the
The Spring collection was held in Hampton and
the Fall collection was held in Sandown. Both collections were very successful
with a record 490 cars processed in Hampton and 103 cars processed in the
Sandown collection. The total cost of both collections $29,874. A grant from
the State of NH, based on the population of the District towns, in the amount of
$8,616 helped to offset the cost. The remainder was paid for out of District funds
which had been set aside for this purpose. The per car cost for the Hampton
collection came to $48.09; and the per car cost for the Sandown collection came
to $57.43 per car. Based on the response to the collections, the Committee feels
these collections are a very important function of the District and should
continue.
The District has budgeted funds in the 1995/1996 Budget to hold
1,

1994.

population of the District towns.

collections in the Spring and/or Fall of 1995.

The

District will continue to review other possible

order to arrive

at

more economical

methods of refuse disposal

in

solutions.

In April, 1993, Selectman Joe Mills

was appointed by

the Selectmen to serve as
Administrative Assistant Janet
to attend the meetings in his absence.
Please don't
hesitate to call the Selectmen's Office or the Town's Recycling Center for any
questions you may have; 964-5523 or 964-5300, respectively.

Town's representative
Thompson was appointed
the

to

53B and 149M.

Respectfully submitted,

Southeast Regional Refuse Disposal District 53-B
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SEWER COMMISSION'S REPORT
The Rye Sewer Commission came

March,
Board of
The Commission's responsibilities included then and now, the
Selectmen.
operation and maintenance of the sewer in the Rye Beach and Jenness Beach
Sewer District as well as any further extension or possible expansion into other
1993.

into existence as a separate entity in

Previously, the functions of the

Commission were handled by

the

areas of Town; billing residences connected to the sewer, both capitol recovery
charges and sewer use charges, based on water bills for both residences and

commercial properties.
In the twenty-one (21) months since its inception, the Commission has held
twenty-six (26) work sessions and forty-five (45) public Commission meetings.
The following is a list of issues addressed and handled by the Commission:
The appointment of a part-time Administrative Assistant and Clerk of
1.
the

Works
2.

to handle the day to day business as well as the quarterly billing.
Repaired the Abenaqui Pumping Station and initiated plans to bring

this station

up

to the

the addition of a gas

same specifications of the other pumping stations including
powered emergency generator similar to the other stations.

Investigated and ordered those residences using the sewer system as a
3.
depository for ground water to cease and desist. An inspection of all manholes
was conducted with fifty percent (50%) found to need repair. The twenty (20)
manholes in the worst condition were completely redone by October, 1994; the

remaining manholes will be addressed in the future depending upon the severity
of the infiltration. These efforts reduced greatly the amount of rain and surface
water processed through the system and charged to the Rye Sewer District.
4.
Dealt with and solved various abatement issues; one backup problem;
improper billing; coordination with the Rye Highway Department on various
issues and ruled on various Sewer Use Ordinance issues.
Presently, the Commissioners and staff are pursuing those designated
5.
septic tanks that have not been properly disabled as well as those that have not

been reported as such.
Respectfully submitted.

Rye Sewer Commissioners
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REPORT OF THE ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
FOR THE TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

March

8,

1994 and March 12, 1994

At 8:30 a.m. on March 8, 1994 at the Rye Elementary School
gymnasium. Moderator Sharon DeVries opened the ballot box to
She inserted the OpTech program
display the empty compartments.
and zeroed the OpTech voting machine, displaying the resulting zero
tape.
She verified that the machine was in proper operative order
and the phrase "system ready for voting" appeared at the beginning
Tag no. 894798 was placed on the program,
of the day's tape.
securing it into place.

At 9:00 a.m. Moderator DeVries declared that the polls were
It was
open and commenced the reading of the official warrant.
moved by Elizabeth Yeaton, seconded by Jane Ireland, to waive the
further reading of the warrant. So voted. Mrs. DeVries read the
notice to cast absentee ballots after 1:00 pm, and that notice was
duly posted along with the lists of absentee ballot applications,
applicable N.H. statutes, and sample ballots. Material which was
prepared by the Planning Board regarding the zoning questions was
made available for examination by voters.
The ballot box was secured and ballot voting commenced.

Absentee ballots were processed and cast, beginning at 2:00
p.m.

At 7:00 p.m. Moderator Sharon DeVries announced that the polls
were closed and the counting procedure ensued. At 7:30 p.m. Mrs.
DeVries announced the results of the voting and declared the
winners of each race. The results are shown on the accompanying
page.

At 9:15 a.m. on the 12th day of March 1994, at the Rye Junior
High School gymnasium. Moderator Sharon DeVries called to order the
business portion of the Annual Town Meeting. She introduced Girl
Scout Joanna Hemming and Boy Scout Brandon Brewster, who led the
assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.
Mrs. DeVries welcomed
everyone to Town Meeting and read the results of Tuesday's
election.

The moderator announced that any new officers would be sworn
in at the conclusion of this meeting.
She went over her rules for
the meeting, saying that generally we would follow the articles in
order, that all remarks should be addressed to her as moderator,
that we will vote by a show of hands unless there is a secret
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She asked that anyone speaking please state
ballot requested.
their name and that any amendments be made to writing unless they
are only one or two words. Mrs. DeVries advised those assembled of
RSA 40:10 which says that you may vote to restrict reconsideration
of any vote previously taken and, if you do, the matter cannot be
raised again during this meeting - it can only be brought up at
another meeting with a new notice, not less than seven days from
today.
She advised that the safest way to protect a vote was to
move to restrict reconsideration after each vote.
6.
To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to RSA Chapter
149-1:17, to provide that sixty-eight percent (68%) of the annual
bond debt cost (principal and interest) of the sewer project shall
be paid from the Town's General Fund, rather than from assessment
on sewer users, beginning with the July 15, 1994, payment through
January 15, 2012.

ARTICLE

Moderator DeVries announced that she had received a request
for secret yes/no ballot on this article.
Robert V. O'Brien moved to accept the article
amendment.
Frank Drake seconded his motion.

subject to

The moderator called for discussion.
Jack Squires moved to
Article 6 by changing the words "sixty-eight percent" to
"forty percent".
His motion was seconded by Bill Ladrie.

eunend

Mrs. DeVries recognized Mr. Laurence Tosi, Sewer Commissioner,
who came forward with a presentation on Article 6.
His
presentation included projection of transparencies, copies of which
are a part of this record. Mr. Tosi spoke briefly of the history
of the sewer issue, saying that the Town was mandated by the
Federal Government and the State of New Hampshire by letter from
the state dated July 9, 1981.
Finally on November 17, 1989 the
town voted 470 yes and 114 no to install a sewer system in Rye
Beach and Jenness Beach. At that time we appropriated over three
million dollars and it was estimated that the users would bear 32%
of that cost.
March 1991 there was a vote of 220 yes and 68 no.
The ground rules changed, with all costs to be borne by the users.
At that time it was estimated that there would be 521 users. Today
that actual number is 471.
He listed the following reasons for
acceptance of the cost sharing: 1. Beaches are a Town asset. 2.
Town of Rye was mandated to install the sewers. 3. Town voted in
1989 to fund the sewer project.
4.
Projected costs to users
tripled from initial estimate.
Mr. Tosi said we are asking the townspeople to pay 4 0% of the
Capital costs (i.e., bond, principal and interest).
This will
cover the mains, the pumping stations and the pipe to Hampton.
Users will continue to pay 60% of the capital costs plus he's going
to be paying operation and maintenance based on front footage, and
sewer use based on consumption of water.
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Alden Howard said in 1989, as Commissioner of the Dept. of
Environmental Services, and a resident of Rye, he had the unpopular
duty of filing a lawsuit against the town which resulted in the
sewer system that we're talking about today. He said the primary
purpose of a sewer system is to protect the public health which
means the health of everyone in the community, not just the users.
The court ordered the town to correct the violations against the
Clean Water Act, not the users, and as such we should remember that
it is benefiting all of us. The Federal government recognizes that
the costs of these projects is such that they cannot be borne by
Unfortunately the
one individual or small group of individuals.
town waited for over ten years before they took action and that
cost the town considerable amount of money. We let the benefit of
Federal and State grants amounting to as much as 95% total go by,
and now that extra cost is being thrust upon the town, and in this
case, upon the users, which puts it way out of reason. Mr. Howard
said the original figure of 68% is in line with other New Hampshire
coinmunities. He urged strongly that the article be passed, without
the amendment

Robert Wylde agreed with Mr. Howard.
said he feels this is a town problem which
the burden on a small amount of people down
Beach area. He mentioned that there are a

Selectman Marty Quirk
was solved by putting
at the Jenness and Rye
lot of hardships.

Norman Kent said his system is designed by state standards and
that's to protect the health of everyone in town.
He said it
recently cost him $7500 to replace it, after 35 years, so he is not
in the mood to be benevolent and subsidize someone else's system.
If you amortize that $7500 over 15 years at 9%, you come up with
$900 to $1000 a year that it's costing me.
Hal Nord referred to a recent Portsmouth Herald article by
Larry Favinger entitled "Responsibility Comes with Home Rule".

George Wood said he was not supposed to be sewered. He had a
new leach field.
Then someone decided I had to be on the sewer
because I lived in that area. I not only had to spend $1500 to put
a pipe right through the middle of my brand new leach field, but I
now pay this total bond.
If the town takes on this 40% (which I
too would pay a part of)
at the end of thirty five years I will
have paid $35,000, not $7500.
,

Dr. O'Brien offered a history of this issue.
He pointed out
how for many years it was stated and understood that this would be
a shared cost.
Only in 1991 was there an article in the warrant to
encompass phases 5 and 6, which was the Jenness Beach area, and a
Sewer Cost Recovery Ordinance, which shifted the entire cost of the
project onto the users despite all the assurances on the previous
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TOWN WARRANT
The State of New Hampshire

To the inhabitants of the Town of Rye, in the County of
Rockingham in said State, qualified to vote in Town
affairs
You are hereby notified to meet at the Rye Elementary
School in said Rye on Tuesday, the 14th day of March 1995, next at
nine o'clock in the forenoon until seven o'clock in the evening to
vote on the following subjects:

ARTICLE 1
To choose one 1 Selectman for three 3 years one
Sewer Commissioner for three (3) years, one (1) Cemetery
(1)
Trustee for three (3) years, one (1) Library Trustee for two (2)
years, one (1) Library Trustee for three (3) years, one (1) Trustee
of the Trust Funds for three (3) years, one (1) Budget Committee
Member for two (2) years, two (2) Budget Comniittee Members for
three (3) years, one (1) Planning Board Member for one (1) year,
two (2) Planning Board Members for three (3) years.
.

(

)

(

)

,

ARTICLE 2.
To choose all necessary officers for the Rye School
District in accordance with the statutory procedure adopted by said
District at its March 1962 annual meeting.
ARTICLE 3.
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Rye Zoning
Ordinance as recommended by the Planning Board to wit:

AMENDMENT NO.
I.

GROWTH MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE

Update Section 901.1 to use the 1990 U.S. Census as the data
base, rather than the 1980 U.S. Census by:
A.
B.

II.

1,

Changing "1980 U.S. Census" to "1990 U.S. Census."

Amending the last sentence to read: "For the year 1994,
the December 31, 1993 base of dwelling units is 2098,
and the annual 1.75 percent limitation is 36."

Delete Section 902 Subdivision Approval Limitations, and
re-index Section 903 to Section 905 accordingly.

AMENDMENT NO. 2.

OFFICE USE IN BUSINESS DISTRICT

Amend the Business District to allow offices as a permitted
use by adding the following to Section 210.1:
G.

Business, financial, professional or government
offices.

A-3
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AMENDMENT NO.

3.

CORNER LOTS

Add the following to Section 202.6:
On a corner lot, frontage, depth and front yard
requirements shall be met for both streets.

AMENDMENT NO. 4.

SEPTIC REQUIREMENTS

Amend the last sentence of Section 202.5 to change the word
"regulations" to "requirements" so that the sentence reads:
Alteration, repairs, replacement or extensions of
existing systems must comply with N.H. Water Supply
and Pollution Control Division requirements.

AMENDMENT NO.
I.

II.

5.

WETLANDS DISTRICT MAP

Delete Section 301.2 and re-index the remainder of Section
301 accordingly.

Amend Section 301.1 (Definition of Wetlands Conservation
District) to read as follows:
301.1 Definition of District
The Wetlands Conservation
District comprises any and all of the following areas
within the Town of Rye:
;

A.

Tidal marshes, fresh water marshes, and streams
and ponds.

B.

Soils defined as poorly drained or very poorly
drained by the USDA Soil Conservation Service or
by High Intensity Soils (HIS) soils mapping when
available

The above descriptions are solely determinative of the
boundaries of the areas within the Wetlands Conservation
District. As a guide, the following plan delineates the
location of the areas comprising the District.

Town of Rye Hydric Soils, produced by
Rockingheun Planning Commission, 12-20-94
III.

Amend Section 301.3 (re-indexed as Section 301.2) by adding
the following sentence:
Where HIS soils data are available, such data shall
be the conclusive determination of the Wetlands
Conservation District boundary.

AMENDMENT NO. 6.

BUFFER ADJACENT TO RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS

Add the following to Section 202.10:
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where the buffer area is developed, further encroachment
may occur only by special exception.
**************************************************** • * **********
You are hereby further notified to adjourn to meet at the Rye
Junior High School on the eighteenth day of March, next, at nine
o'clock in the forenoon, to vote upon the following subjects:

ARTICLE 4.
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) for the purpose
of purchasing the land (approximately 1.79 acres) and buildings
(three) located at 575 Washington Road also known as the Old
Parsonage Apartments (Map 12, Lot 43) and an adjacent vacant lot
(approximately one-third acre) located on Old Parish Road (Map 12,
Lot 44) for the purpose of the future expansion of the Rye Library
and other Town facilities, and to authorize the issuance of not
more than $500,000 of bonds or notes in accordance with the
provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (N.H. RSA Chapter 33 as
amended) and to authorize the Selectmen to issue and negotiate such
bonds or notes to determine the rate of interest thereof, and to
take such actions as may be necessary to effect the issuance,
negotiation, sale and delivery of such bonds or notes as shall be
in the best interest of the Town of Rye.
THIS ARTICLE REQUIRES A TWO-THIRDS VOTE
THIS ARTICLE IS RECOMMENDED BY THE SELECTMEN
THIS ARTICLE IS RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE

ARTICLE 5. To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to RSA 149-1; 17,
to raise and appropriate the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000)
for
the purpose of preliminary engineering work for the
installation of a public sewer on Lafayette Road from Washington
Road to the City of Portsmouth municipal boundary. This will be a
non-lapsing account per RSA 32:3, VI and will not lapse until the
project is completed or in five (5) years, whichever is less.
THIS ARTICLE IS RECOMMENDED BY THE SELECTMEN
THIS ARTICLE IS RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE

ARTICLE 6. On petition of Cathy Doney and at least 41 other voters
of the Town of Rye, to see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of sixteen thousand, three hundred and six
dollars ($16,306) for the purpose of increasing the Recreation
Department s total budget to the amount originally recommended by
the Recreation Commission. The cunount computed as:
'

Recreation Commission Proposal:
Selectmen's Proposal:

$47,546
$31,240

Difference:

$16,306

THIS ARTICLE IS NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE SELECTMEN
THIS ARTICLE IS NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE
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ARTICLE 7. On petition of Jeffrey Wood and at least 24 other voters
of the Town of Rye, to see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of one thousand dollars ($1,000) for the
Prescott Park Arts Festival, which runs the eight-week summer
festival in Prescott Park, Portsmouth, N.H., and for 20 years has
offered free family entertainment to thousands in the Seacoast.
The non-profit group relies entirely on donations.
THIS ARTICLE IS NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE SELECTMEN
THIS ARTICLE IS NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE

ARTICLE 8. To see if the Town will vote to eunend the existing
Note:
New
Safety Building Capital Reserve Fund as follows:
language emboldened.
FROM: To establish a Safety Building Capital Reserve Fund for
the purpose of constructing and/or renovating a building and
designate the Selectmen as agents to expend.
TO:
To establish a Safety Building Capital Reserve Fund for
the purpose of constructing and/or renovating a building and
designate the Selectmen as agents to expend contingent upon the
Selectmen conducting a Public Hearing.

ARTICLE 9. To see if the Town will vote to accept the budget
submitted by the Budget Committee and pass any vote in relation
thereto, and to raise and appropriate such sums of money as may be
necessary to defray town charges for the calendar year 1995.
ARTICLE 10. On petition of Donald L. Stevens and at least 66 other
voters of the Town of Rye, to see if the Town will vote to maintain
the full-time status of the position of Building Inspector which
has been full-time since 1984.

ARTICLE 11. On petition of Donald L. Stevens and at least 47 other
voters of the Town of Rye, to see if the Town will direct the Board
of Selectmen and or the Tax Collector to Deed the Frank Brady
Property, described as Lot 77 Map 22, Pioneer Road, Rye, to Frank
Brady in consideration of his payment of all back taxes and
This property was
interest due through the date of conveyance.
taken on Tax Sale and deeded to the Town by the Tax Collector.
ARTICLE 12. To see if the Town will vote pursuant to RSA 79-A:25,
that 50%, not to exceed $10,000.00, of any land use change tax
revenue collected be appropriated to the Rye Conservation Land
Acquisition Account. This eunount and the scime percentage of all
future payments collected pursuant to this chapter will be placed
in the Rye Conservation Land fund in accordance with RSA 36-A:5,
This revenue shall be deposited at the time of collection.
III.
ARTICLE 13. To see if the Town will vote to approve the following
ordinance which was enacted by the Selectmen as an interim
ordinance at their meeting of May 23, 1994:
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MOTOR VEHICLE NOISE ORDINANCE
No person shall operate any vehicle on any way in the Town of
Rye so as to make any loud, unusual, or unnecessary noise as
hereinafter defined.
1

Definitions
Vehicle - The word "vehicle" shall include bus,
highway equipment, motorcycle, motor truck, motor
vehicle, semi-trailer, sidecar, tractor, trailer,
or other vehicle as defined by RSA 259; 1.
Way - The word "way" shall include crosswalk, interB.
secting way or other public highway, or other way,
as defined by RSA 259:1.
;

A.

2
Loud. Unusual, or Other Unnecessary Noise - The words
"loud, unusual, or other unnecessary noise" shall include any noise
occasioned by any one or more of the following actions of the
operator of any vehicle:

A.
Misuse of power exceeding tire traction limits in
acceleration, sometimes known as "laying down rubber" or "peeling
rubber", or
B. Misuse of braking power exceeding tire traction limits in
deceleration where there is no emergency, or
C.
Rapid acceleration by means of quick upshifting of
transmission gears with either a clutch and manual transmission or
automatic transmission, or
D.
Rapid deceleration by means of quick downshifting
transmission or an automatic transmission, or

of

Racing of engines by manipulation of the accelerator, gas
carburetor, or gear selection whether the vehicle is in
motion or standing still, or
E.

pedal,

F. The blowing of any horn except as a warning signal or the
use of any other noise making device whether the vehicle is in
motion or standing still, or

G. No sound reproduction systems operated within a motor
vehicle shall be used in such a manner as to create unnecessary
noise for any person other than the driver and the passengers in
said vehicle.
3.
Motorcycle mufflers - No motorcycle will be operated on a
way within the Town of Rye in violation of 266:59-a.
4

Penalty and Validity

A.
Any person violating the penalties of this provision
shall be guilty of a violation and upon conviction thereof shall be
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liable to a penalty of not more than $100 for each offense.
If any section or part of a section, or a
B.
this article is declared invalid or unconstitutional,
be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force
any other section or sections, or part of a section or
this article.

paragraph of
it shall not
or effect of
paragraph of

ARTICLE 14. To see if the Town will vote to approve the following
ordinance which was enacted by the Selectmen as an interim
ordinance at their meeting of August 22, 1994:

ALARM ORDINANCE
Policy for the installation, maintenance and use of private alarm
systems.
Definitions

;

PRIVATE ALARM SYSTEM; Any alarm system, monitored by any off
premise dispatch company or agent that requires a response by any
emergency service.
AGENT: For the purpose of this ordinance, an agent shall be anyone
who can hear an audible alarm or see a visual signal of alarm and
notify the appropriate agency, i.e., a neighbor.
USER: A person or business who has a private alarm system connected
to the Rye municipal alarm or to a private company who
automatically calls the fire or police department.

FALSE ALARM: An alarm signal requiring a response by the fire or
police personnel caused by human error or lack of proper
maintenance of the system. Fees shall not be charged for alarms
caused by water pressure changes or alarms tripped by circumstances
beyond the control of the user.

MALICIOUS FALSE ALARM: Any person who directly or indirectly
communicates to any government agency that deals with emergencies
involving danger to life or property a report known by him to be
false regarding a fire, explosion, or other catastrophe or
This definition is
emergency, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.
per state RSA 644.3, False public notice.
Installation

;

Anyone installing an alarm system shall file an application with
the applicable public safety agency. The application shall contain
the location and type of system, installer, user, monitoring agent,
and two call-back persons. Call-backs shall be within 15 minutes
travel to the location and have knowledge of the system and
necessary keys. Security boxes may be substituted for call-backs
at the discretion of the department head.
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:

Any system installation shall be in accordance with all existing
state and local codes and all devices shall be UL or FM approved.
Any alarm system connected to the RYE FIRE DEPARTMENT municipal
alarm wiring will in addition comply with the RFD guidelines for
auxiliary systems.
All alarm systems shall be inspected by a member of the department
having jurisdiction of the alarm response. A fee of $10.00 shall
be charged
for plans
review,
application,
inspection,
and
administrative paperwork.

Maintenance

;

It shall be the responsibility of the user to insure the system is
in proper working order at all times to protect against false
calls.
It is understood that the user is not responsible for
alarms caused by nature and transmission equipment outside his
control. It is suggested that a user have a maintenance agreement
with the installer or other reliable agent.

Penalties

;

A violation of more than 3 false alarms in a calendar year at any
one alarm site shall be as follows
4-6 alarms
7-8 alarms
9-10 alarms

$25.00 each occurrence
$50.00 each occurrence
$100.00 each occurrence

An outside audible alarm that causes an intermittent or continuous
disturbance for 2 hours shall be assessed a penalty of $75.00 PER
OCCURRENCE AND MAY BE DISCONNECTED BY THE SIMPLEST MEANS, by a
member of the agency having jurisdiction of the alarm.

Any person found guilty of a malicious false alarm shall be subject
to the penalties of State RSA 644:3.
Codes Governing Alarm Installations

;

FIRE ALARMS
N.F.P.A. 74
N.F.P.A. 72 & 72E
N.F.P.A. 101
B.O.A.C. FIRE PREVENTION CODES
B.O.A.C. BUILDING CODES
NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODES

BURGLARY AND INTRUSION ALARMS
R.S.A. 323 A

ARTICLE 15. To see if the Town will vote to approve the following
ordinance which was enacted by the Selectmen as an interim
ordinance at their meeting of March 29, 1993:
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SOLICITING/CANVASSING IN THE TOWN OF RYE ORDINANCE
This Ordinance was adopted March 29, 1993 under the provisions of
New Hconpshire RSA 31:102a which is made a part hereto.
1.

PURPOSE

;

The purpose of this ordinance is to promote the health,
safety and general welfare of the community. The provisions
hereof are adopted and established to:

Minimize undue disruption to individuals' rights to
privacy
Lessen traffic hazards and undue congestion in the
streets.
Give reasonable notice to the Rye Police Department that
soliciting/canvassing is taking place in the Town and
allow the Department control over such events.
2.

DEFINITIONS

;

Solicitors and canvassers, except as hereinafter provided,
shall mean and include any person, principal or agent who
travels from town to town or from place to place in the szune
town soliciting or canvassing for any purpose, including but
not limited to soliciting funds, products, services,
agreements and positions and/or signatures pertaining to any
matter.
3.

PERMITS ;

No solicitor or canvasser shall solicit or canvass within the
Town of Rye unless such solicitor or canvasser holds a valid
permit to do so as hereinafter provided.

A business enterprise soliciting within the Town of Rye must
hold and show a valid New Hcunpshire Hawkers and Peddlers
License before a permit is issued by the Town of Rye.

A non-profit organization soliciting within the Town of Rye
will need to show proof of registration as a non-profit
organization in the State of New Heunpshire.
The Police Department of the Town of Rye shall grant a permit
only to persons who file an application and show the required
documentation at the Police Department specifying the dates
which he/she will solicit or canvass. The application must
be signed by the Police Chief before a permit shall be
issued.
The Police Department shall keep records of all permits
issued with a permit number assigned, neunes and residences of
the persons licensed and purpose for the soliciting/
canvassing. All such records shall be open for public
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.

inspection.

Each person soliciting or canvassing shall carry upon his/her
person a copy of the approved permit and have it available
to any resident or Police Officer of the Town of Rye who may
request to see such permit.
4.

FINES /COMPLAINTS /REVOCATION ;

Soliciting or canvassing without a permit in the Town of Rye
shall be subject to a fine not to exceed $100.00.
Complaints regarding solicitors will be recorded on a Police
incident report along with the officer's findings and
recommendations. Such reports shall be reviewed regularly by
the Police Chief. The Police Chief, at his own discretion,
may revoke a solicitor s permit should the complaints
warrant
'

Any permit granted hereunder shall be immediately revoked by
the Police Chief of the Town of Rye if the licensee breaches
any condition or provision herein.
5.

LOCAL LIMITATIONS

;

No one shall be allowed to solicit or canvass in the Town of
Rye before the hours of 9:00 AM or after local sunset as
published daily in the Portsmouth Herald
Those not subject
to the permit process include:
.

Rye residents under 18 years of age acting on their own.
Rye School organizations.
Rye Scout groups, 4H Groups and similar youth
organizations
Rye non-profit clubs and organizations.

Any group not requiring a permit under this ordinance is
encouraged to check in with the Police Department prior to
solicitation

ARTICLE 16. To see if the Town will vote to approve the following
ordinance which was enacted by the Selectmen as an interim
ordinance at their meeting of September 26, 1994:

BURNING PERMITS PRESIDENTIAL) ORDINANCE
Residents of Rye may obtain a permit to burn brush under the
following guidelines of the Rye Fire Department, Division of Forest
and Lands, and Department of Air Pollution:
1

.

A permit from the local Forest Fire Warden or designee
must be obtained.
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2.

No burning allowed between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and
5:00 P.M. unless raining.

3.

Burning during rain shall be at the discretion of the
local Forest Fire Warden or designee.

4.

If rain stops during a rain burn, the fire shall be
extinguished immediately unless it is after 5:00 P.M.

5.

No permit is needed when there is snow covered ground,
but the Rye Fire Department shall be notified prior to
burning at 964-6411.

6

Permits will not be issued if weather is unfavorable or
proclamation closing woodlands is in force. Unfavorable
weather conditions shall be determined by the local
and/or State Forest Fire Warden. In the absence of the
local warden, his designee shall make the determination.

7.

Permits shall be issued to landowner, unless permission
is granted to another responsible party in writing.
PERMISSIBLE MATERIAL

nT.T.ntmn

1.

Brush (not over 5" in diameter)

2

Unpainted wood

3

Untreated wood

4.

Leaves, grass, hay, etc.

TO BE BURNED

NON-PERMISSIBLE MATERIALS
1.

Pressure treated Itunber.

2.

Brush over 5" in diameter.

3.

Painted lumber.

4.

Tires, rubber, plastics, styrofoam, etc.

5.

Asphalt shingles.

6.

Demolition materials (without approval of Air
Quality)

7.

No petroleum based products.
SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

1
A safe distance from dwellings and/or buildings shall be
maintained at all times, not only from sparks, but radiant heat
also.
This includes utility lines.
.
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2. A garden hose long enough to reach around the fire shall be
maintained at all times.
3.

Fires to be attended at all times by a responsible party.

4. All fires shall be extinguished at expiration date and time
on permit.
5.

Fires that are buried are not considered to be extinguished.

6. If fires are declared a nuisance, by Air Pollution Officials
local Forest Fire Warden or designee, the fire shall be
extinguished if a single complaint is received.

or

LIABILITY
1. Any person, firm or corporation causing or kindling a fire
shall be liable under RSA 224 Forest Fire Permit Law.

2.

Penalty per RSA 224 Forest Fire Permit Law:
STATE:

LOCAL:

Fined not more than $1,000.00 or imprisoned for
one year.
Not to exceed $350.00.

BUILDING CONTRACTORS' BURN PERMIT
1. All building contractors' burning permits shall be issued in
accordance with the guidelines established by the Rye Fire
Department, State Forest and Laws, and Department of Air Quality.
2
All piles to be burned shall be inspected by the local
Forest Fire Warden or his designee prior to issuing a permit.

3. These permits will be inspected only Monday-Friday between
the hours of 8:00 AM and 3:30 PM.
4
Any building contractors burn permit inspections needed
after these hours will be permitted if the contractor agrees in
writing to a $25.00 per hour charge.
'

ARTICLE 17
To see if the Town will vote to approve the following
ordinance which was enacted by the Selectmen as an interim
ordinance at their meeting of May 16, 1994:
.

VEHICLES SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED ON THE RYE RECREATION FIELD
EXCEPT EMERGENCY AND AUTHORIZED MAINTENANCE VEHICLES.
VIOLATORS WILL BE SUBJECT TO A $100 (one hundred dollar) FINE.
ARTICLE 18.
To
cimendment to the
was enacted by
meeting of June

see if the Town will vote to adopt the following
Town of Rye Parking Ordinance, Section Four, which
the Selectmen as an interim ordinance at their
20, 1994:
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Approximately ten (10) permit only parallel parking
(1)
spaces located approximately 150 feet north of Parsons
Creek on the easterly side of Route lA; almost opposite the
HARBORMASTER Restaurant.

ARTICLE 19. To see if the Town will vote to adopt the following
amendment to the Town Dump Regulation (on file in the Town Clerk's
Office)

:

ADD to RECYCLING:
All persons utilizing the Town Dump must participate in
recycling by separating out the following materials and by
depositing same at /in each designated area/container:

Number 7. Plastic:
HDPE, Soda bottles
26. Tin cans
27. Glossy newspapers, boxboards, magazines,
telephone books
28. Junk mail

ADD:
ADD:

To see if the Town will vote to accept as a public
ARTICLE 20.
road Forest Green Road as shown on Subdivision Plan for Bert Ham in
Rye, NH, on Sageimore Road by Vernon Dingman, III, dated August,
1992, and recorded at the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds as
This acceptance is conditioned upon the Town
Plan No. D-22194.
receiving the final approval of the Town's Public Works Director,
the Board of Selectmen and the Planning Board.

ARTICLE 21.
To see if the Town will vote to accept as a public
road the extension of Maple Avenue, a short cul-de-sac added to the
end of the existing Maple Avenue as shown on Subdivision Plat
prepared for S. Woodrow Sponaugle, Central Road, Rye, NH, DurginSchofield Associates Plan No. 50773, June 3, 1988. This acceptance
is conditioned upon the Town receiving the final approval of the
Town's Public Works Director, the Board of Selectmen and the
Planning Board.

ARTICLE 22. To see if the Town will vote to allow a five percent
(5%) discount on all property paid within thirty (30) days from the
date of mailing of the tax bills.
ARTICLE 23.
To see if the Town will vote to change the polling
hours at Town Elections so that the polls would remain open from
8:00 o'clock in the morning to 7:00 o'clock in the evening which
would be consistent with the polling hours required for all State
and Federal Elections.
ARTICLE 24. To see if the Town will authorize the Board of
Selectmen to accept gifts of personal property which may be offered
to the Town for any public purpose, pursuant to RSA 31;95-e. The
Selectmen must hold a public hearing before accepting such gift,
and the acceptance shall not bind the town to raise, appropriate.
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or expend any public funds for the operation, maintenance, repair,
or replacement of any such personal property.
This authorization
shall remain in effect until rescinded at Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 25. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of
Selectmen to accept, on behalf of the Town, gifts, legacies, and
devises made to the Town in trust for any public purpose, as
permitted by RSA 31:19.
ARTICLE 26. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen
to sell to the highest bidder at public auction, or sealed bid,
such surplus Town equipment as is not traded in on new equipment in
1994.

ARTICLE 27. To see if the Town will vote to rescind the balance
remaining on the following bond authorizations:

Article

Date

Amount Authorized

1983
1989
1991

Total Authorized
Issued in 1991

475,000
3,080,000
2.400.000
$5,955,000
4,400,000

Authorized - Unissued

$1,555,000

9
1

7

$

ARTICLE 28. To transact any other business which may legally come
before this meeting.
Given under our hands ajid seal this 21st day of February in the
yeft^^fCou^ Locd./n)Lnet4fen hundred and ninety five.

EDWARD H. HERLIHY, Vice Chairman

^SEPH/ G MILLS
.

,

^JR

. ,

Selectman

EDWARD H. 'HERlIHY,'Vi,pp Chairman
/G0SEPH/G. MILLS, OR., Selectman
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We hereby certify that we give notice to the inhabitants within
named, to meet at the times and places and for the purpose within
mentioned, by posting up an attested copy of the within WARRANT at
the places of meeting within named and a like attested copy at the
RYE POST OFFICE and the RYE PUBLIC LIBRARY, being public places in
said Town, on the 2^h d^ of February, 1995.

EDWARD H. HERLIHY, Vice Chairma

^OSEPll G. MlLLS, JR., Selectman
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
OEPARTME^fr OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION
MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIVISION
P.O. Box 457
Concofd. NH 03302-0457
(803)271-3397

BUDGET FORM FOR TOWNS WHICH HAVE ADOPTED THE
PROVISIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL BUDGET LAW

BUDGET OF THE TOWN
OF

N.H,

Appropriations and Estimates of

Revenue

for

the Ensuing Year January

From

19

IMPORTANT: Please read t>ie new RSA 32:5
requires this budget be prepared
hearing must be held on this budget.
It

.

1

9 93

to

applicable to

on a "gross"

1

basis,

all

to

December 31,1 9 95

or for Fiscal Year

.

municipalities.

showing

all

revenues and appropriations. At least one public

When
clerk,

19

completed, a copy of the budget must be posted with the warrant. Another copy must be placed on file with the town
and a copy sent to the Department of Revenue Administration at the address above.

THIS

BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE TOWN WARRANT
RSA 31:95 and 32:5

Budget Comn)jttee: (Ple&se sign

In ink)

'^TuT^
^-^L^/^(kc^

(Rev. 1993)
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MS.7

PURPOSE OF APPROPRIATION
(RSA3I:4)
Accl.

No.

G6N6RAL GOVERNMENT

MS-7

PURPOSE OF APPROPRIATION
(Continued)
Accl.

No.

VERSION

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE - HBA

LOCAL GOVERNHENTAL UNIT:

RYE, N.H.

_
A

1.

Total RECOMMENDED by Budget Comn.

n

Rev. 1993

(RSA 32:16, ^9, t 32:21)

FISCAL YEAR ENDING:
B

DECEMBER

3

1

,

C

lSk96a2

Plodzik

&

193 North

Sanderson Professional Association

Main

Street

Concord. N.H.

(603)225-6996

03301

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S COMMUNICATION OF
REPORTABLE CONDTHONS AND OTHER MATTERS
To

the

the

Members

of

Board of Selectmen

Town of Rye
Rye, New Hampshire
In

planning and performing our audit of the

the

Town's

Town

of Rye for the year ended December 31, 1994,

we

considered

internal control structure in order to determine the scope of our auditing procedures for the

purpose

of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our review of these systems was not intended to provide

assurance on the internal control structure and should not be relied on for that purpose.

Under the standards established by the American

Institute of Certified Public Accountants, reportable conditions

involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the
internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Town's ability to record, process,
summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements.
A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal

low level the risk that errors or irregularities, in
would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited, may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned fimctions. Our
consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
structure that might constitute reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively

amounts

that

reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above.

During the course of our review, the following condition was noted
weakness as defined above:

that

was considered

to

be a material

SEWER DEPARTMENT
The Sewer Department Fund

financial statements as presented for audit

were inaccurate and incomplete, as they

did not appropriately reflect transactions involving other funds and State revenue during the year.

As

indicated in the financial statements at

deficit of

$1,137

at

December

December

31, 1994, the Fund's financial position changed

31, 1993, to a surplus of $95,123.

This figure was arrived

posting audit adjusting journal entries of $241,723 in order to close the fund

It is

extremely important that for enterprise funds of

possible and that

An

it

be monitored on a routine

independent auditor's engagement

entities' financial statements.

recorded

in

auditors to

the accounts

make

all

is

is

this type, a

at year's

at

from

a

subsequent to

end.

formal budget be prepared as accurately as

basis.

designed primarily to issue an unqualified opinion on the govenunental

Usually only a testing of documentary evidence supporting the transactions

included as part of the audit scope.

Management should not

the necessary adjustments at year's end.

accurate internal financial reports throughout the year.
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rely

on the independent

Likewise, sewer rate determination requires

Town of Rye
Independent Auditor's Communication of Reportable Conditions and Other Matters

We recommend that responsible officials take appropriate measures to insure that monthly fmancial report data
We would he pleased to assist management in this regard.
is accurate.
Also, the following situtuation with regard to bonds/notes authorized

As noted

in the notes to fmancial statements, there are

$1,555,000

at

December

Article

-

bonds authorized

unissued needs to be addressed:
-

unissued for sewer purposes, totalling

31, 1994, determined as follows:

ff

Date

9
1

7
Total Authorized
Issued in 1991

Authorized

We

recommend

at a future

We
the

-

Unissued

that, if the project is

Town

complete, an article rescinding the remaining authorization be approved

Meeting.

no material weaknesses in
Minor weaknesses or other considerations coming

are pleased to report that, during the course of our review of internal controls,

Town's accounting systems and records were

identified.

were generally procedural in nature and dealt with administrative or recordkeeping practices.
we made specific recommendations or provided instruction to those individuals involved
during the course of our audit fieldwork. An area discussed included the inadequacy of the ambulance billings

to our attention

In these instances,

soft\\'are.

This report

is

intended solely for the information and use of management and others within the administration.

This restriction

is

not intended to limit distribution of this report, which

is

a matter of public record.

&

Plodzik

Sanderson Professional Association

193 North Main Street

Concord. N.H.

(603)225-6996

03301

INDEPENDENT A UDITOR 'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

To

the

the

Town
Rye,

We

Members of

Board of Selectmen
of Rye

New

Hampshire

Town of Rye as of and for the
These general purpose financial statements
are the responsibility of the Town's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general
purpose financial statements based on our audit.
have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the

year ended December 31, 1994, as listed in the table of contents.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.

Those standards require that
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the

we

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
general purpose financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

As

described in Note IB, the general purpose financial statements referred to above do not include the General
Fixed Assets Account Group, which should be included to conform with generally accepted accounting
principles. The amount that should be recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group is not known.
In our opinion, except for the effect on the financial statements of the omission described in the preceding
paragraph, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the

of

its

nonexpendable

Town

of

Rye

as of

December

trust funds for the year then

3 1 1994, and the results of its operations and cash flows
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting
,

principles.

Our

audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken
whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial
as a

statements of the

Town

of Rye.

Such information has been subjected

audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion,
in relation to the general

to the auditing procedures applied in the
is

fairly presented in all material respects

purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

^)

January 28, 1995
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EXHIBIT A

TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Group
December 31, 1994

Governmental Fund Types

ASSETS

AND OTHER DEBITS

General

Special

Capital

Revenue

Projects

Assets

416,074

Cash and Equivalents

$ 556,798

$

95,194

1,770.333

Investments
Receivables (Net of

Allowances For Uncollectibles)
570,719

Taxes
Accounts

23,376

44,085

25,478

Intergovernmental

Other
18,277

Interfund Receivable

1,000

146,345

1,295

Inventory

4,318

Prepaid Items

Other Debits

Amount

to be Provided for
Retirement of General Long-Term Debt

TOTAL ASSETS AND
OTHER DEBITS

$ 2.825.552
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$ 606.201

$241.539

A

Account

Fiduciary

Fund Types

Group

Trust and

General Long-

Total

Term Debt

(Memorandum Onlyl

Agency

342,696
756.208

$

$ 1.410.762

2.526,541

570.719
67.461
25,478
175.597

175.597

10.050

175,672
1,295

4,318

$1.284.551

4.187.400

4.187.400

$4.187.400

$9.145.243
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EXHIBIT A

(Continued)

TOWN OF RYE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Group
December 31, 1994

Governmental Fund Types

LIABILITIES

AND EQUITY

General

Special

Capital

Revenue

Projects

Liabilities

$

Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits
Intergovernmental Payable

16,480

$

16,593

32.563
2,239,451
1,000

Interfund Payable

164,622

Escrow and Performance Deposits
Deferred Compensation Plan
95,165

Deferred Revenues
General Obligation Debt Payable
Capital Leases Payable

Compensated Absences Payable
2.289.494

Total Liabilities

276.380

Equity

Fund Balances
Reserved For Endowments
Reserved For Encumbrances

48,455

Reserved For Inventories
Reserved For Special Purposes

1,295

241,539

Unreserved
329,821

Designated For Special Purposes

486.308

Undesignated
Total Equity

536.058

329.821

241.539

$ 2.825.552

$ 606.201

S241.53S

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND EQUITY
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Fiduciary

Account

Fund Types
Trust and

Agency

$

7,876
31,082
10,050

230
175,597

224.835

720,300

720,300
48,455

339,416

580,955

1,295

329.821
486.308

SCHEDULE A-I

TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund
Statement of Estimated and Actual Revenues
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

REVENUES
Taxes
Property

Land Use Change
Yield

and Penalties on Taxes

Interest

Total Taxes
Licenses and Permits

Business Licenses, Permits and Fees

Motor Vehicle Permit Fees
Building Permits

Other Licenses, Permits and Fees
Total Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenues
State

Shared Revenue

Tax
Highway Block Grant
Business Profits

State

and Federal Forest

Land Reimbursement
Other Reimbursements
Federal

FEMA
Other
Total Intergovernmental Revenues

Charges For Services
Income From Departments
Other
Total Charges For Services

Miscellaneous Revenues
Sale of Municipal Property
Interest

on Investments

Insurance Dividends

and Reimbursements
Other
Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Estimated

SCHEDULE A-1

(Continued)

TOWN OF /JIjE, new HAMPSHIRE
General Fund
Statement of Estimated and Actual Revenues

For the Fiscal Year Ended December

REVENUES

31,

Estimated

Other Financing Sources
Operating Transfers In
Interfund Transfers
Capital Reserve Funds

Nonexpendable Trust Funds
Total Other Financing Sources
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Unreserved Fund Balance
Used To Reduce Tax Rate
Total Revenues. Other Financing

Sources and Use of Fund Balance

22,000
64.150
?6,150

1994

Actual

SCHEDULE A-2

TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund
Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

Encumbered

Current
General Government
Executive
Election, Registration and Vital Statistics

Financial Administration

Legal Expenses

Planning and Zoning

General Government Buildings

Cemeteries
Insurance, not otherwise allocated

Advertising and Regional Associations

Other
Total General Government
Public Safety
Police Department

Ambulance
Fire Department

Building Inspection

Emergency Management
Total Public Safety

Highways and

Streets

Administration

Highways and

Streets

Street Lighting

Care of Trees
Total Highways and Streets
Sanitation

Solid
Solid

Waste Collection
Waste Disposal

Other Sanitation
Total Sanitation

Health
Administration

Animal and Mosquito Control
Total Health

Welfare
Direct Assistance
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(Over)
Expenditures
Net of Refunds

130,968
10.564
193,177
55,860

Encumbered

Under

To 199?

Budget

(6,656)

1,556
1,002

19,324
37,641

52,777
197,786
28,102
2.338
728.537

516.968
53,466
351.857
68,015
7.039
997.345

(177)
(10,860)

3,724

296
11,523
(20,274)

4.050
1.002

(16.818^

(5,665)

43,981
1.126

45.107

44,290
675,020

5,332
9.399
3,301
(1.665^

10.702

53,473

2,593
2.860
724.763

(393)

140
53.220

96,570
159,534

1,849

5,426

1.431

69

257.535

7.344

2,261
37.633
39.894

100
3.367
3.467

33.544

1.456
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SCHEDULE A-2

(Continued)

TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund
Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

Encumbered

From 1993
Culture and Recreation
Parks and Recreation
Patriotic Purposes
Historic District

Commission

Total Culture and Recreation

Conservation

Other

Debt Service
Capital Lease
Interest

Expense

-

Tax Anticipation Notes

Total Debt Service
Capital Outlav

Recreation
Police Department Equipment

Pumper
Highway Equipment

Fire Department

Town

Hall Equipment
Grove Road Landfill
Total Capital Outlay

Intergovernmental

School District Assessment
County Tax Assessment
Tax Assessments
Jenness Beach Precinct

Rye Water
Rye Beach

District

Precinct
Total Intergovernmental

OTHER nNANCING USES
Operating Transfers Out
Interfund Transfers
Special

Revenue Funds

Library

Conservation Commission

Sewer Fund
Capital Reserve

Funds

Total Operating Transfers Out
Total Appropriations.

Expenditures and Encumbrances
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(Over)

Expenditures
Net of Refunds

Encumbered

To 1995

Under
Budpet

79.694
2,557

9.115

82.251

9.858

593

Jim

1.203

14,440
47.775
62.215

560
32.225
32.785

405

795
608

25,392
50,000
48,550
38,947
938
164.232

50
2,346

(1.293)

2.346

1778)

(938)

4,337,451
759,876

53,026
285,264
33.053
5.468.670

219,818
1,000

37,636
60.544
318.998

14,042
14.456

28.498

$8.879.187

$ 48.455

The

$ 129.619

notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SCHEDULE A-3

TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund
Statement of Changes in Unreserved - Undesignated Fund Balance
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

Unreserved - Undesignated
Fund Balance - January 1

$ 620,091

Deductions

Unreserved Fund Balance Used
To Reduce 1994 Tax Rate

298.597

$321,494

Additions

1994 Budget Summary

Revenue Surplus (Schedule A-1)
Unexpended Balance

$

34,613
129.619

of Appropriations (Schedule A-2)

$ 164,232

1994 Budget Surplus
Decrease in Reserve for Inventories

582
164.814

Total Additions

Unreserved - Undesignated
Fund Balance - December 31

The notes

$ 486.308

to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B

TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

Governmental Fund Types

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for Services
Miscellaneous

Other Financing Sources
Operating Transfers In

Bond Refinancing Proceeds
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Expenditures

Current

General Government
Public Safety

Highways and

Streets

Sanitation

Health
Welfare
Culture and Recreation

Conservation

Debt Service
Capital Outlay

Intergovernmental

Other Financing Uses
Operating Transfers Out
Total Expenditurrs and Other Financing Uses

Excess CDeficiencv') of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances

-

January

Fund Balances

-

December 31

1

Fiduciary

Fund Type
Total

Expendable

(Memorandum OnW)

Trust

$ 7.554,644

636.957

482.358
416,122
18.249

198,192

60.544

460.148
34.733

78.793

9.783.154

15

728,552
997,345
724.763
328.456
39.894
33.544
340,106
1.380

28.411

549.170
207,905
5,468.670

36.162

397.646

64.588

9.817.431

(34.277)

14.205

312.613

1.468.513

$ 326.818

$ 1.434.236

The notes

to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SCHEDULE

B-3

TOWN OF RYE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue

Fund

-

Public Library

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

Revenues
Intergovernmental

NHHC Grant
Charges for Services
Book

Sales and Fines

Miscellaneous
Interest

Income

Donations
Other

B-3

Building
Total

Account

$

550
5,010

572

32

2,322

598

219,818
24.037

J2

252.907

159,222
10,307

53,564
15,907

2.168

18.855

2.168

257.855

(4,948)

28.241
$

The

23.293

notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SCHEDULE

B-4

TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue

Fund

-

Conservation Commission

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

SCHEDULE B-S

TOWN OF RYE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue

Fund

-

Sewer Department

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

Revenues
Intergovernmental

FEMA

31.510

Aid Water Pollution
Charges For Services
Sewer Rents
Merchandise Sales and Job Works

228,221

State

266,170
4,974

Miscellaneous
Interest

Income

5.523

Other

2.883

Other Financing Sources
Operating Transfers In

General Fund
Capital Projects

37,636
42.486
34.733

Fund

Bond Refinancing Proceeds
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

$ 654.136

Expenditures

Current
Sanitation

Wages and Employee

17,938

Benefits

9,672

Utilities

Plant Supplies and Expenses

1,851

Maintenance and Repairs

5.958

Legal and Audit

5.114

498

Vehicle Expense

General and Administrative

Town

4,158

Hampton

of

Transport

1,156

Treatment

24,576

Debt Service
220.000
266.955

Principal
Interest

557.876

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance

-

January

Fund Balance

-

December 31

The

96.260

n.l37)

1

notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C
TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)
General and Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental
Cliarges for Services

Miscellaneous

Other Financing Sources

Operating Transfers In
Bond Refinancing Proceeds
Total Revenues and

Other Financing Sources
Expenditures

Current

General Government
Public Safety

Highways and

Streets

Sanitation

Health
Welfare
Culture and Recreation

Conservation

Debt Service
Capital Outlay

Intergovernmental

Other Financing Uses
Operating Transfers Out
Total Expenditures and

Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency') of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances

-

Januarv

Fund Balances

-

December 31

1

Budget

EXHIBIT D

TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Fund Balance

All Nonexpendable Trust

Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1994

Fiduciary

Fund Type
Nonexpendable
Trust Funds

Operating Revenues

New

Funds

$

10,750

and Dividends
Capital Gains

57,992
89.904

Total Operating Revenues

158,646

Interest

Operating Expenses

Cemetery Care

4.150

Operating Income

154,496

Operating Transfers
Transfers Out

(62.338-)

Net Income

92,158

Fund Balance

-

January

Fund Balance

-

December 31

640.740

1

The notes

$ 732.898

to financial statements are an integral part
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of

this statement.

EXHIBIT E

TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Cash Flows

Tmst Funds
Ended December 31, 1994

All Nonexpendable

For

the Fiscal Year

Fiduciary

Fund Type
Nonexpendable
Trust Funds

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Payments to Suppliers
for Goods and Services

$

New

20,800

Funds Received

Operating Transfers Out

-

To Other Funds

(68.636)

7.065

Net Cash Provided hv Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing
Proceeds From Sales and

Activities

122,873

Maturities of Investment Activities

(89.260')

Purchase of Investment Securities

Net Cash Provided
Net Increase

Cash

-

in

January

(4,150)

59,051

Interest and Dividends Received

33.613

in Investing Activities

Cash

40,678

1

48.102

Cash -December 31

$

88.780

$

92.158

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Gain on Sales of Investments
Decrease in Receivables

(89,904)

1,060

Interest

Increase in

Due To Other Funds

3.751

Total Adjustments

(85.093)

Net Cash Provided hv Operating Activities

The

$

notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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bond issues that it would be a shared cost. This left the voters
with very limited options. Phase 1 through 4 were already on the
way, well toward completion.
There was $500,000 left from the
original bond issue because the bids came in low, that could be
applied to the Jenness Beach area to help lower the costs of
construction. If the expansion of the sewer into the Jenness Beach
area was voted down, the contractors who were involved in
construction of the original project would finish up and leave, and
any effort to sewer Jenness Beach, which was necessary, would cost
a great deal more at some later date.
Article 6 tends to mend this
funding inequity.

Selectman Herlihy said he supports Dr. O'Brien totally.
Susan Elsea asked what would happen in the future with sharing
of costs for future sewering of Rye.

Moderator DeVries introduced Mike Donovan, who is serving as
Town Counsel at this meeting, as well as Jane Ireland, Mr. Herlihy,
Mr. Mills, Mr. Quirk, and Mrs. Thompson.
Atty. Donovan answered
Ms. Elsea 's query, saying that Article 6, if enacted, would apply
only to the present sewer bond issue.
If there are additional
projects in the future, the town will have to resolve the cost
sharing arrangements at the time those decisions are made.
Maurice Cataford asked about the handout which lists the bond
debt and user/non-user amounts over 20 years.
He noted that the
user portion is 60% and the non-user 40%. Isn't the user the sum
of those two?
How do you separate the user from the non-user on
the basis of a general tax? Mr. Tosi replied that the user and
the non-user would be paying 40% and then the user would be paying
an additional 60% on top of that.
Lester Stevens said things change.
There's no guarantee to
any of us that by the year 2012 we're not going to be paying for a
sewer system.
Patricia Wood said as the Town's Welfare Director, she is
aware of some in town who cannot pay their sewer bills.
She said
we are all a part of the community.
Steven
precedent.

Murray

was

concerned

that

we

would

be

setting

a

Joe Falletti said some sharing is correct. He asked for some
more knowledge of what is the appropriate amount.

Jeanne Moynahan asked if at some point the entire town would
be sewered, and if not, what parts would be or would not be?
Mr. Tosi said the Sewer Commission has appointed a board who
will report back in the nine months with what changes we think will
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have to be made, but the most important thing to look at is that
there are going to be some mandated areas. Lafayette Road can be
handled through Portsmouth, and at the present time we don't know
anything about what's going on over in the Wallis Sands area.

Responding to Mr. Falletti's concern, Mr. Tosi said that the
represents the main line going to Hampton and the pumping
All the
stations and the main line going down Ocean Boulevard.
tributary lines represent the 60% that are going to be handled by
the users.
40%

Michael Thiel asked if the numbers on the handout are fixed
and if not, how predictable are they. Atty. Donovan responded that
"yes, they are fixed".

Looking at
Jim Brown interpreted the orange handout sheet.
the second line (1995) the user pays $56.15, approximately $30.00
Operation and Maintenance costs, plus $37.00 - or about $123.00,
whereas the non-user would pay $37.00.

George Quinn referred to the handouts from the Budget
Committee where the sum total of all the articles amounts to $1.12
on the tax rate, or about a 25% increase. He felt that the article
as written at 68% would add about 15 cents to the tax rate which
equates to approximately 4%, which he felt was a fairly modest
increase.
Curt Lovellette responded to Mr. Quinn by saying that should
the amendment and subsequent article pass, the appropriation amount
This amount was substantiated by the Sewer
would be $51,678.
Commissioners.

further
clarification regarding
for
asked
Demme
Dave
amendments, to which the moderator responded that he would be able
to amend the article further.

Jim Rand asked why the State, who mandated the sewer, can't
help to pay for it.
Alden Howard responded that we were in violation of a federal
It was not mandated by the
law - the Federal Clean Water Act.
Secondly the
State as much as it was by the Federal government.
Federal and State government did give considerable assistance in
this whole project. Dr. O'Brien elaborated that when the original
bond issue was floated, it was done with the understanding that
this would, indeed, be a shared cost among users and non-users.
Brian Klinger said he is confused by the numbers. He asked
what the user would pay in 1995. Moderator DeVries recounted that
the user would pay $37.00 plus $56.15 plus roughly a $30.00 figure
The Sewer Commissioners
that was tossed out as an O & M cost.
concurred. Jack Squires pointed out that the user would also pay

68
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the user charges (water use)
It was moved by Mike Steinberg, seconded by Lester Stevens, to
move the question. Two-thirds majority required to pass.

Show of Hands.

Motion to Move the Question passed.

The moderator re-read the article, as amended.

She called for

a vote on the amendment.

Show of Hands.

Amendment to Article

6

is declared passed.

Moderator DeVries called for discussion on the article,
amended
Selectman Joe Mills spoke to the article, as
the town made a mistake when they let these funds
have an opportunity to correct it.
Mr. Mills
hardships he'd been told of and he urged passage

as

amended. He said
go years ago. We
spoke about the
of the article.

J. P. Nadeau asked to place some additional information in the
record relative to the sewer project.
The state did mandate the
Town of Rye, however, it was because of the raw sewage being piped
from the Rye Beach residents into the ocean, observably.
He said
he became a selectman in 1983 and it was his recollection that this
had been going on for at least ten years. The Rye Beach Precinct
did not take measures to issue cease and desist orders. That raw
sewage going onto our public beach is what called it to the
attention of the state.
Jenness Beach was added on.
Lafayette
Road is an add on.
There were only five properties in Rye Beach
that could not put in their own system and of those five, they
could have had community systems and the State advised me that we
could qualify for Federal and State funding to do community
systems.
Mr. Nadeau said further that there have never been any
figures that have been correct, and with all due respect to the
figures here, he can't trust any figures.

Jack Squires said he put the orange sheet together and "these
figures are fixed". This is the bond issue which is a fixed figure
from day one. The only way they can go is down, not up.
It was moved and seconded to move the question.
Two-thirds
majority required. Show of Hands. Motion to Move the Question is
Passed.

Voting by secret yes/no ballot ensued.
kept open until 11:30 a.m.
Results of Vote on Article
declared PASSED.

6:
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The ballot box was

Yes 280; No 142.

Article
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ARTICLE 7. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of twenty-two thousand dollars ($22,000) for the purpose
of revaluating the utilities in the Town of Rye, and to authorize
the withdrawal of twenty-two thousand dollars ($22,000) from the
Capital Reserve Revaluation Fund created for that purpose.
It was moved by Mr. Herlihy, seconded by Mr. Mills, to adopt
this article as read.
Mr. Herlihy said that the utilities in Rye have never been
The Town of Rye wants its own valuation of
properly valued.
utilities by a well-accepted method, that is higher than the method
recently included in a bill which Public Service of New Hampshire
The Selectmen are proposing to
sponsored and which failed.
transfer $22,000 that we have already raised and set aside to a
contract to have a recognized utility company come in and value all
We believe that this will ultimately result
of these properties.
in an increase to the assessed valuation of these utilities which
will help the tax rate.

Bob Wylde said it seemed to him that if we raise the taxes on
these utilities, they'll just turn around and increase our utility
bills.
Mr. Herlihy responded that all public utilities have a set
If they get re-valued it may
rate of return from the State.
ultimately spread across the State and it may ultimately affect the
rate of the various utilities in a minor way, but nobody believes
that it will affect the rate in any major way. Remember that the
rate is spread across the entire State, not just the Town of Rye.
In response to a question asking where we'd get revaluation money
when we need it if we spend it now, Mr. Herlihy said that the State
told us the town's valuation falls within the State's guidelines.
In our operating budget we have appropriated approximately $12,000
for our two part-time appraisers to continue their work to keep the
appraisals of this town up to date, so that we don't have to spend
somewhere between $150,000 and $200,000 in a mass revaluation.
There is still money in that reserve fund. This is a small amount
that we're taking out.
J. P. Nadeau asked if the Board submitted this to more than one
company for a bid. Once again, Mr. Herlihy responded saying that
we have one cost. This is a very narrow area of valuation and there
is one company that does it that is recognized by the State as
having the expertise, here in New England and in New York State.

Lester Stevens said he thought that the State mandated that we
had to re-valuate every ten years. Mr. Herlihy replied that there
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is no requirement to do it every ten years.
There is a range of
value that the Town must stay in. As long as we keep within that
range, then we don't have to go through revaluation.

It was moved and seconded to move the question.
Two-thirds
majority required. Motion to move the question is Passed.

The moderator re-read Article
Show of Hands. Article
article.

7.
She called for a vote
7 is declared Passed.

on the

ARTICLE 8. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $400,000 for the purpose of rebuilding and repairing
certain roads in the Town of Rye.
It was moved by Mr. Mills, seconded by Mr. Herlihy, to adopt
this article.

Selectman Quirk said the Board asked the department heads to
come back with as close to 1993 budget numbers as possible.
A
request was made of Mr. Moynahan, the Public Works Director, to
give an evaluation of the roads. Bud came back with a thunderbolt.
Mr. Quirk displayed a synopsis classifying the roads into three
categories by priority. He explained that we have eight roads in
Priority One, which is the most expensive category.
It costs
approximately $100,000 to do one mile of road. Priority One roads
would equal a total cost of $638,189. Five roads in Priority Two
would be $150,923 and, five roads in Priority Three equaling
$61,693, all of which totals $850,805.
That includes taking care
of drainage.
This does not include the $183,109 that is in the
line item and is for work which has already been planned for.
Mr. Quirk said the Board did not want to bury this in the budget
and is trying to eliminate crisis management. We have this problem
to solve. He said "You are the ones who have to foot the bill, so
you should be the ones to determine what approach we should use."
The Board has suggested $400,000.
That would hurt, no question
about it. But, it would put us into a recovery mode. He asked for
suggestions and said "We want to hear from you".

Norman Kent commented that this was a large amount of money
and asked what roads were involved. Mr. Quirk said it would be up
to Bud Moynahan, but probably we would begin with the most heavily
used roads. Ed Kirkpatrick said he wanted to know what roads were
involved.
Mr. Quirk read a list of the roads.
Carroll Brown
clarified that this article was over and above the line item
amount
Bill Ladrie said this is money that has to be spent whether we
like it or not. We can't let the roads go. He said we should put
money away every year. He expressed his confidence in the way the
Board has this set up.

George Wood moved to amend Article
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His motion was seconded by Joan Tierny-

Discussion followed on the article, as amended. In answer to
series of questions from Sally Powell, Mr. Quirk said this would
be over a period of years. Skip Page said in business you would
He moved here from
expect a return on this kind of investment.
Vermont and that state made a conscious choice to keep most of
their roads dirt roads because they are much less expensive to
maintain.
a

Mel Low felt this was too much money to bite off in one year.
He supported Mr. Wood's amendment and then to come up with a long
range plan next year.

Frank Drake agreed.

Michael Thiel asked for a comparison to previous years'
The response was that this year's line item is close to
budgets.
the average of previous years. Anastas Christo commented that no
one has discussed Walmart and that when Walmart is completed many
citizens will be using alternate routes to get to Portsmouth and
elsewhere. Bob Papp said it appears obvious that the town has let
things slide for the last not quite ten years. He felt this is an
He supported the article's
excellent idea to try to catch up.
entire $4 00,000 amount.
J. P. Nadeau said it is not reasonable to ask the people on a
fixed income in this town to bite a $400,000 bullet. He supported
Lester Stevens supported the $100,000
the $100,000 amendment.
along with a long range plan.

David Demme asked if it would be possible to amend the article
The moderator clarified that he always
further after this vote.
has the right to amend further.
It was moved by Joe Falletti, to move the question, seconded
So voted.
by Charles Sleeper. Two-thirds majority required.

Show of Hands.

Amendment to Article 8 is declared passed.

David Demme moved to amend Article 8 by changing the amount
from $100,000 to $200,000. Jack Squires seconded his motion.

Show of
The moderator called for a vote on the amendment.
Hands.
Results are unclear. The moderator called for a Count of
Hands. Results of vote on amendment. Yes 129; No 95. Amendment to
Article 8 is declared passed.
It was moved and seconded to move the question.
majority required. So voted.
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Moderator DeVries called for a vote on Article 8, now amended
Show of Hands. Article 8, as
to read in the amount of $200,000.
amended, is declared Passed.
It

Article

was at this point in the meeting that the results
were tabulated and announced. Yes 280; No 142.

of

6

Selectman Quirk moved to restrict reconsideration of Article
His motion was seconded by Mr. Mills. No discussion. Show of
Hands. Motion to restrict reconsideration of Article 6 is passed.
6.

Moderator DeVries clarified the results of Article 6 by saying
that it passed at 4 0%. The impact on the budget would be to reduce
the budget as it appears in the warrant by $3 6,17 5. When we get to
the budget calculations, the number will be reduced by $3 6,175.
Curt Lovellette moved to restrict reconsideration of Article
This motion was seconded by Mr. Herlihy. No discussion. Show
Motion to restrict reconsideration of Article 8 is
of Hands.
passed.
8.

ARTICLE 9.
To see if the Town will vote to establish a Capital
Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA 35:1 for the purpose of
purchasing *heavy capital equipment for the Highway Department, and
to raise and appropriate the sum of fifteen thousand dollars
($15,000) to be placed in this fund and to designate the Board of
Selectmen as agents to expend.
*DRA's definition of "heavy"
truck.

is anything heavier than a pick-up

It was moved by Mr. Herlihy, seconded by Mr. Quirk, to adopt
this article.

Selectman Herlihy said in the past the town has established
capital reserve funds for building and equipment such as the fire
truck, etc., but have not done so for the Highway Department where
most of the expendable, heavy equipment is used. Considering that
we have three dump trucks, a couple 1-ton trucks, two trash
packers, a grader dating back to 1953, a backhoe which we're going
to replace this year, and other equipment, we need to plan for the
future. This will take some of the sting out of purchasing a large
piece of equipment, and spread the cost over a period of time.
This would also give the Selectmen a fund from which to replace
equipment should an emergency arise during the year.

Frank Drake said he is in favor of capital reserve in general,
however he is not in favor of this particular article as written.
He proposed an amendment to remove the last eleven (11) words "and
to designate the Selectmen as agents to expend". Mr. Drake said he
felt it should be our choice when to spend capital reserve money.
His motion was seconded by Curt Lovellette.
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Mr. Herlihy said he felt the Selectmen needed the flexibility
of being able to expend these funds, in case of emergency.

Paula Snyder said this is not an expendable capital reserve
She said it cannot be expended from unless by vote of town
meeting. She suggested that in an emergency the Selectmen can meet
with the Budget Committee, upon approval of DRA, and enter into a
lease/purchase agreement.
fund.

Lester Stevens asked if the different departments had things
in their budgets to accommodate emergencies if they have them.
Mr. Herlihy said he did not think there were any line items
specifically for emergencies, although there are items for repair
He said too that Mrs. Snyder had a good point.
of equipment.

In reply to a question from Bob Wylde, Moderator DeVries
explained the necessary procedure for a Special Town Meeting.

Jim Brown made a motion to move the question. His motion was
Show of Hands.
Two thirds majority required.
duly seconded.
Motion to move the question is declared passed.
Vote on Amendment to Article
Amendment is declared Defeated.
9

9.

Hand Count:

Yes 58; No 66.

It was moved by Michael Thiel, duly seconded, to amend Article
by adding the words "only in emergency"

Mr. Demme said he understood that even as written it would
have to go to Town Meeting.

Attorney Donovan said Mrs.
Meeting has to vote to expend.

Snyder was correct and the Town

Dr. O'Brien spoke against the proposed amendment.

The moderator called for a vote on the amendment to add the
words "only in emergency". Show of Hands. Amendment is declared
defeated.
The moderator called for
Article 9 is declared Passed.

a

vote on Article

9.

Show of Hands.

On petition of Patricia Quinn and at least 25 other
ARTICLE 10.
voters of the Town of Rye: To see if the Town will vote to raise
and appropriate the sum of fourteen thousand dollars ($14,000) for
the purpose of equipping and upgrading the Library building and
continuing automation; and authorize the withdrawal of fourteen
thousand dollars ($14,000.00) from the Library Capital Reserve Fund
created for that purpose.
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It was moved by Carlene Carey, seconded by Mr. Crapo. to adopt
this article.

Library Director Kathleen Rudden said this article is to
transfer money so that we can use it this year for continued
upgrading of the library.
Hal Nord supported that article on the basis of the benefits
and felt children should be encouraged
to use the facility.
of the library to himself,

The moderator called for a vote on Article 10.
Article 10 is declared Passed.

Show of Hands.

ARTICLE 11.
To see if the Town will vote to establish a Capital
Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA 35:1 for the purpose of
closing the Grove Road Landfill as mandated by a letter dated July
from the State of New Hampshire,
Department of
1990
10,
Environmental Services, and to raise and appropriate the sum of
forty-five thousand dollars ($45,000) to be placed in this fund and
The
to designate the Board of Selectmen as the agents to expend.
landfill is approximately five (5) acres in size and is bounded by
Grove Road, to the north, Washington Road to the west and Garland
Road to the southeast.
It was moved by Mr. Mills,
this article.

seconded by Mr. Quirk,

to adopt

William Jenness said in 1976 the landfill was ordered closed
by the State.
There are three test wells there. HB317, which is
sitting in Appropriations in Concord right now (has not been
approved yet) would give a 20% Federal Grant to all towns that have
closed out landfills since 1985. This would include our Lafayette
Road landfill which we've spent $500,000 on, so we'll receive
probably $100,000 if this appropriation is approved in Concord.
This landfill is endangering our water supply, Mr. Jenness said,
and he urged passage of the article.
Selectman Quirk gave a brief report on the Grove Road
landfill. We have completed Phase 1 of the hydrogeologic study of
this landfill.
The question is has the refuse contaminated the
ground water.
It's been determined that there was not much, if
We dug ten test pits in order to
any, industrial waste in there.
determine what kind of refuse was in there and to determine the
thickness of the waste, what type of fill to use, and to check for
volatile organic compounds. Mostly they found household refuse.
The $45,000 is for three more wells to assess vertical groundwater
gradiants, groundwater quality in the lower saturated zone, and
potential groundwater refuse interaction under the landfill
footprint.
Bob Papp asked about the issue of unfunded mandate?

75

1994 Town Meeting, Rye, N.H.

Page 13

Attorney Donovan said orders from before the constitutional
amendment was enacted can still be made.
In response to questions from David Demme, Mr. Quirk said
There are
$45,000 would be expended, possibly, all this year.
Each one of them are about
three steps in the Phase II closure.
There may be a spring reading that they would
$15,000 apiece.
want to do in 1995 because that's when the high water is, and in
that event we would encumber the funds. This money can be expended
without another town meeting.

Paula Snyder questioned "selectmen as agents to expend". She
asked Town Counsel Michael Donovan to explain that the money could
Attorney
not be withdrawn without approval of town meeting.
Donovan said that is not correct. The town has two options when it
sets up a capital reserve fund. One is to not establish any agents
to expend in which case any expenditure has to be made by the town
meeting; the town also has the option of adding agents to expend.
If you add agents to expend, then the agent to expend has the
authority to expend out of the capital reserve fund without going
Mrs.
to town meeting even though it's not an expendable trust.
Snyder asked the Board why they are putting money into a capital
reserve and then spending it?

David Dawley said we have a problem in Rye and need to do
something about it. How can we talk about setting money aside to do
things when we don't know what we have? We need to do the testing.
It's very important to the environment and town water.
Frank Drake pondered why we put money into a capital reserve
Atty. Donovan said the
so we can just turn around and spend it.
point is to have the capital reserve fund set up and you don't need
to have subsequent warrant articles in order to set it up, you can
appropriate money into it in future years though the budget.

Lester Stevens clarified that this $45,000 was strictly
engineering studies and was not to be put away toward a cap of the
landfill.
David Ghamari ascertained that the town has submitted what we
have done in Phase I to the State and that we have told them what
we will do with Phase II which is the $45,000 that we're talking
about - the cost of completing Phase II. What we don't know is if
that will be acceptable to the State, or will they be requiring
more wells.
There is also the possibility, Mr. Quirk said, that
they'll say we don't need any more wells in which case we won't
expend all the money, although I don't think that is going to
happen.
The moderator called for a vote on Article 11.
Article 11 is declared Passed.
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To see if the Town will vote to accept the budget
ARTICLE 12.
submitted by the Budget Committee and pass any vote in relation
thereto, and raise and appropriate such sums of money as may be
necessary to defray town charges for the calendar year 1994.
a

It was moved by Mel Low, seconded by Curt Lovellette, to adopt
budget in the amount of $4,160,238.

Selectman Edward Herlihy moved to zunend the budget to decrease
the capital reserve fire equipment account by $15,000 and to
The motion was
increase the debt service account by $15,000.
seconded by Jane Ireland.
Mr. Herlihy said this has to do with the lease/purchase
agreement for the new fire truck and that DRA has explained that
the money needs to be expended from Debt Service rather than
Capital Reserve, so this is purely a procedural transaction.

The moderator called for a vote on the amendment.
Hands. Amendment is declared Passed.

Show of

It was moved by Mr. Herlihy, seconded by Jane Ireland, to
amend the budget by removing $16,117 as shown on page A13 of your
town report as "recommended amount of collective bargaining cost
items", and remove incremental costs from appropriate salary line
items
Mr. Herlihy spoke to the amendment saying the $16,117 is
broken down into various line items in the budget under salaries.
The amount was our estimate of what it might have cost us in
increased costs as far as salaries and overtime had we ratified the
We do not have one,
fire and police association contract.
therefore we don't need to appropriate this money. If subsequently
the contract is signed it will have to be approved at another town
meeting and the appropriate money raised at that time.

The moderator called for a vote on the amendment.
Hands. Amendment is declared Passed.

Show of

budget,
Peter White questioned the Police Department
Mr. Herlihy responded that
specifically the overtime budget.
reports from the Police Chief indicate that the overtime is going
down, and the Board of Selectmen are continuing to work to control
overtime costs.
It was moved and seconded, to amend the budget by reducing the
budget by $36,175 as a result of the vote on Article 6, which
changed the percentage from 68% to 40%.

The moderator called for a vote on the amendment.
Hands. Amendment is declared Passed.
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Budget Committee Clerk Curt Lovellette came forward with a new
bottom line budget amount of $4,144,121.00.
The moderator called for a vote on Article 12 in the amount of
Show of Hands.
Article 12, in the amount of
$4,144,121.00.
$4,144,121.00, is declared Passed.

George Wood moved for reconsideration of Article
Chapman seconded his motion.

9.

Gary

It was determined
Mr. Wood said he voted against Article 9.
then that Mr. Wood had not voted on the prevailing side and
therefore he is not permitted to move for reconsideration.

Frank Drake said there was confusion on that article when we
were told that the selectmen already could not spend the money
without going to town meeting. In fact, that is not true. He said
he felt that people who can access money too easily don't try hard
enough to find alternative low cost solutions before they go the
easy money way.
It was moved
reconsider Article

by

Debra

Crapo,

seconded

by

Mr.

Crapo,

to

9.

Discussion continued around the issue of the Selectmen's
ability to move monies from line items and expend them as needed,
Hr. Herlihy clarified that the
in the regular part of the budget.
issue seems to be does the Town Meeting want to keep control of
when the money is expended to purchase a certain piece of
equipment, or do you want to designate that authority to the
Selectmen.
Curt Lovellette illuminated that warrant articles limit the
spending of those amounts to those specific purposes. The decision
on capital reserve money expenditures can go on into some future
As a capital reserve account, it will be there ready for
year.
use.

The moderator called for a vote on the motion to reconsider
Article 9. Show of Hands. Motion is declared Defeated.
It was moved by Mr. Herlihy to restrict reconsideration of
Article 9. Mr. Quirk seconded his motion. Show of Hands. Motion
to restrict reconsideration of Article 9 is declared Passed.

ARTICLE 13.
To see if the Town will vote to designate the
Selectmen as agents to expend from the Capital Reserve Fund
under the provisions of RSA 35:1 known as the Capital Reserve Fund
established in March, 1965 for the purpose of accumulating funds
for the purchase of a fire truck or trucks as Town needs may
require together with the necessary pumps and equipment.
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It was moved by Mr. Herlihy, seconded by Mr. Mills, to adopt
this article.
Mr. Herlihy said this is a re-word of an article that was
approved at the March 1993 town meeting and allows the Board of
It is the only
Selectmen to be designated as agents to expend.
reason for this article.

Frank Drake "same thing as before".
controlling our money, not them.

I

personally favor us

Paula Snyder maintained that you can't use the capital reserve
for a lease/purchase, especially when it's a debt to the bank. You
can only do it on the last year when you're taking title of the
machinery. That is per DRA on Thursday from Dick Therriault.
Atty. Donovan said all this article is doing is designating
agents to expend.

Show of Hands.

The moderator called for a vote on Article 13.
Article 13 is declared Defeated.

To see if the Town will vote to adopt the following
ARTICLE 14.
ordinance which was enacted by the Selectmen as an interim
ordinance at their meeting of May 10, 1993:

ANIMAL BEACH USE AND WASTE REMOVAL ORDINANCE
A.

Authority

In accordance with the authority granted by New Hampshire
47:17 XI, and
Revised Statutes Annotated Chapters 31:39 I (b)
466:39, the following ordinance is hereby adopted by the Board of
Selectmen and is intended to supplement and be in addition to the
provisions of RSA 466:30-a which was duly adopted by the Town of
Rye pursuant to Referendum vote November 4, 1980 as required by RSA
466:30-b:
,

B.

Beach Use

Dogs are not permitted on Town beaches before 6:00 p.m. or
1.
after 8:00 a.m. from the first day of June to the first day of
October each year.

Horses are not permitted on Town beaches at any time from
2
the first day of June to the first day of October year.
C.

Waste Removal

The owner or person having custody of any dog that
defecates on Town of Rye beaches shall immediately remove all such
defecation and dispose of it on his own property or otherwise
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properly dispose of same.
D.

Penalties

The owner or custodian of any dog or horse that fails to
1.
comply with any provision of this ordinance shall be subject to the
following:
A fine of twenty five ($25.00) dollars for the first
(a)
offense and fifty ($50.00) for each subsequent offense; and
(b)
In the case of a dog, if it is not under the control of
its owner or other custodian, the dog may be impounded in which
event the owner shall also be responsible for the payment of all
costs incurred by the Town in impounding the dog, including, but
not limited to all boarding fees due the facility where the dog was

impounded
E.

Conflicting Lava

In the event any provision of this ordinance is in conflict
with any applicable State law or any other Town ordinance, the law
or ordinance that provides the higher duty or greater penalty shall
govern

It was moved by Mr. Mills, seconded by Mr. Herlihy, to adopt
Article 14.

Ruthann Swaincott questioned the definition of "town beaches".
She interpreted that the town was assuming liability on all the
beaches in that area.
Selectmen Joe Mills said that we're trying to enact an
ordinance to keep the beaches clean, not assume any liability.
George Wood said he feels responsible for anything on his
property and the town enforces an ordinance about dogs there the
The town doesn't
same way the town enforces noise ordinances.
assume liability for my property when they enforce an ordinance
there
Lester Stevens asked who would be responsible for monitoring
this?

Joe Mills said the State of New Hampshire legislature right
now is dealing with the beach access question.
The moderator reminded the meeting that we would not be
The question on the
solving the beach access issue here today.
floor is a proposed ordinance.
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Robert Papp ascertained that a definition of town beaches did
not exist and moved to table Article 14, seconded by Charles
Sleeper.

Anastas Christo said this probably should be tabled simply
because we don't know if the town owns the beaches or not.
The moderator called for a vote on the motion to table, which
requires a 2/3 majority to pass.
Dr. O'Brien said that this article is more than an issue of
who owns the beach, it's an issue of public health.

Curt Lovellette asked the Board of Selectmen for their opinion
of the motion to table.

Selectman Mills said he hoped it would not be tabled. We're
He recommended that this not be
trying to keep the beach clean.
tabled.
Show
Defeated.

of

Hands.

Motion

to

table

Article

14

is

declared

Jack Squires explained that he wrote this ordinance and that
he asked for input from many people, including the Police Chief,
Town Clerk, Beach Commissioner, Dog Officer, Selectmen and the Fire
Chief.
The result is what you have in front of you.

Kenneth Stanley said it doesn't cover enough.
He said he
cleaned up his property every day. People should pick up their doo
where they drop it.
The moderator called for a vote on Article 14.
Article 14 is declared Adopted.

Show of Hands.

ARTICLE 15.
On petition of Joan Provencher and as least twenty
five other voters of the Town of Rye, to see if the Town will vote
that "Trick or Treat" will be celebrated, in the Town of Rye, on
the night of October 30th, for the purpose of consistency.
The
Selectmen, or any other organized groups, or persons shall not have
the authority to change the date, unless brought before a town
meeting for a public vote.
It was moved by Alice Provencher, seconded by Joe Mills, to
adopt this article.

Alice Provencher spoke on behalf of her daughter-in-law,
saying that we have always celebrated Trick or Treat on the eve of
Halloween, and leave Halloween for parties if they want.
The
reason, when we were younger, was if you weren't treated on the
eve, you were open for tricks on Halloween.
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Joe Mills recommended passage of the article.
Debra Crapo said the school is very much in favor of this
because they get about 150 calls asking which day it is.
The moderator called for a vote on Article 15.
Article 15 is declared Adopted.

Show of Hands.

ARTICLE 16.
To see if the Town will vote to accept as a public
road Rock Orchard Lane as shown on a plan entitled Sargent/Hollett
Subdivision Plan Number 85159. This acceptance is conditioned upon
the Town receiving the registered right-of-way warranty deed and
the final approval of the Town's Public Work's Director and the
Board of Selectmen.
It was moved by Joe Mills,
this article.

seconded by Mr. Quirk,

to adopt

Joe Mills said the road is acceptable to the Road Agent.
The moderator called for a vote on Article 16.
Article 16 is declared Adopted.

Show of Hands.

ARTICLE 17. Shall the Town accept the provisions of RSA 202-A:4-c
providing that any town at an annual meeting may adopt an article
authorizing indefinitely, until specific rescission of such
authority, the public library trustees to apply for, accept and
expend, without further action by the town meeting, unanticipated
money from a state, federal or other governmental unit or a private
source which becomes available during the fiscal year? The public
library trustees must hold a prior public hearing on the action to
be taken. Action taken under this section shall:
(a) not require
the expenditure of other town funds except those funds lawfully
appropriated for the same purpose; and (b) be exempt from all
provisions of RSA 32, relative to limitations and expenditures of
town monies.
It was moved by Mr. Herlihy, seconded by Mr. Mills, to adopt
this article.

Kathleen Rudden said this article allows the library trustees
to accept and expend monies, other than regularly budgeted amounts,
without having to come back to town meeting each and every year for
that authority.
Frank Drake clarified that they were looking to be able to
access that money without going through the Budget Committee. He
opposed the article.
Curt Lovellette pointed out that this article is almost
exactly the same language as Article 21. He had a problem that
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this article exempts them from the Municipal Budget Act and that
funds could come in and be expended without the review of the town.
He moved to amend the article by removing the words "and (b) be
exempt from all provisions of RSA 32, relative to limitations and
Mr. Wood seconded his motion.
expenditures of town monies".
Atty. Donovan said it would seem that passing the amendment
tantamount to defeating the article.

would be

Dr. O'Brien said he has the greatest respect for the budget
He could not
committee, but sometimes they get carried away.
foresee any instance in which the budget committee might say no,
you can't spend these memorial gifts. It's much ado about nothing.
He urged defeat of the amendment and passage of the article.

Mr. Wood defended the budget committee, saying they do a good
job of making sure there is enough money in everybody's budget to
suit their needs.
Dr. O'Brien stated that most of the gifts are for specific
purposes, i.e., purchase of books, etc.

Mrs. Snyder said every year there is a similar article in the
warrant, and it has passed. The Selectmen also have had a similar
article.
What is new is that if we pass this, we won't have to
vote for it every year. They do have to have public hearings. She
advised it be approved.

Andrew Doherty said he belonged to an organization in town who
donated money to charities and for the blind, etc. That donation
is not to lower the tax rate in town, it's for the library to buy
some things for the blind.
Frank Drake said "I've changed my mind.

It's fine!"

The moderator called for a vote on Article 17, as written.
ruled that the amendment was tantamount to defeat and
therefore inappropriate.)
Show of Hands. Article 17 is declared
Adopted.
(She

ARTICLE 18. To see if the Town will vote to allow a five percent
(5%) discount on all property taxes paid within thirty days from
the date of mailing of tax bills.
It was moved by Joe Mills, seconded by Edward Herlihy,
adopt this article. No discussion.

The moderator called for a vote on Article 18.
Article 18 is declared Adopted.
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ARTICLE 19. To see if the Town will vote to adopt the provisions
of RSA 33:7 which will authorize the Selectmen to borrow money in
anticipation of taxes indefinitely until specific rescission of
such authority.
It was moved by Mr. Mills,
Article 19. No discussion.

seconded by Mr. Quirk,

The moderator called for a vote on Article 19.
Article 19 is declared Adopted.

to adopt

Show of Hands.

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the
ARTICLE 20.
Selectmen to convey any real estate acquired by the Town by tax
collector's deed indefinitely until specific rescission of such
Such conveyance shall be by deed following a public
authority.
auction, or the property may be sold by advertised sealed bids, or
may be otherwise disposed of as justice may require pursuant to RSA
80:80.
It was moved by Mr. Quirk,
No discussion.
this article.

seconded by Mr. Mills,

The moderator called for a vote on Article 20.
Article 20 is declared Adopted.

to adopt

Show of Hands.

Shall the Town accept the provisions of RSA 31:95-b
ARTICLE 21.
providing that any town at an annual meeting may adopt an article
authorizing indefinitely, until specific rescission of such
authority, the selectmen to apply for, accept and expend without
further action by the town meeting, unanticipated money from a
state, federal, or other governmental unit or a private source
The selectmen
which becomes available during the fiscal year.
shall hold a prior public hearing on the action to be taken.
Action to. be taken under this section shall: (a) Not require the
expenditure of other town funds except those funds lawfully
appropriated for the same purpose; and (b) be exempt from all
provisions of RSA 3 2 relative to limitation and expenditure of town
monies.
It was moved by Mr. Mills, seconded by Marty Quirk, to adopt
this article. No discussion.

The moderator called for a vote on Article 21.
Article 21 is declared Adopted.
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To see if the Town will authorize the Board of
ARTICLE 22.
Selectmen to accept gifts or personal property which may be offered
to the Town for any public purpose, pursuant to RSA 31:95-e.
The
Selectmen must hold a public hearing before accepting such gift,
and the acceptance shall not bind the town to raise, appropriate,
or expend any public funds for the operation, maintenance, repair,
or replacement of any such personal property.
It was moved by Mr. Herlihy, seconded by Mr. Quirk, to adopt
this article. No discussion.

The moderator called for a vote on Article 22.
Article 22 is declared Adopted.

Show of Hands.

ARTICLE 23. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of
Selectmen to accept, on behalf of the Town, gifts, legacies, and
devises made to the town in trust for any public purpose, as
permitted by RSA 31:19.
It was moved by Mr. Mills, seconded by Mr. Herlihy, to adopt
this article. No discussion.

The moderator called for a vote on Article 23.
Article 2 3 is declared Adopted.

Show of Hands.

ARTICLE 24.
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the
Selectmen to sell to the highest bidder at public auction, or
sealed bid, such surplus Town equipment as is not traded in on new
equipment in 1994.
It was moved by Mr. Mills, seconded by Mr. Herlihy, to adopt
this article. No discussion.

The moderator called for a vote on Article 24.
Article 24 is declared Adopted.

Show of Hands.

ARTICLE 25. To transact any other business which may legally come
before this meeting.
Dr. O'Brien commended Mrs. DeVries on doing an excellent job
of keeping the troops in line today. He congratulated Mr. Herlihy
on his election and said he hoped that they would all buy a nice,
large box of bandaids to bind up their wounds.
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At 2:15 p.m. it was moved and seconded to Adjourn.
So voted.

Meeting is declared Adjourned.

Respectfully submitted.

^

/CJ6JU.

\B E. Ireland
Town Clerk/Tax Collector

A true record, ATTEST:

^Tane

E.

Ireland, Town Clerk/Tax Collector
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WHY CHANGE OF VOTE?
1

Violation of Clean

Water Act and

State pollution.
2.

Raw sewerage pumped directly into
the ocean.

3.

Town

Bond

issues

be

would

seriously affected.
4.

The more we

delay, the

more

cost.
5.

Septics are not the solution.

6.

A

federal fine of $1 0,000/day.
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Town Meeting
March 12, 1991
and
March 16, 1991
Yes:220 No:68
1.

Ground
All

changed.
costs to be borne by
rules

the Users.

Estimated Users: 521
Actual Users: 471
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Town Meeting
Nov. 17, 1989
Appropriated over 3 Million

COST ALLOCATION
Town: 68%
Users:

32%

A Shared Expense
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REASONS
FOR THE TOWN
TO ACCEPT
THE COST SHARING
1

Beaches are a Town

2.

Tov\/n of

asset.

Rye was mandated

to install the sewers.
3.

Town voted
to fund

4.

sewer

Projected
tripled

Nov. 17, 1989
project.

costs

from
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initial

to

Users

estimate.

We

are
asking the
Townspeople to pay 40%,
not 68%, of the Capital
Costs

and

(i.e.

Bond,

Principal

Interest).

This will cover the mains,
the pumping stations and
the pipe to Hampton.

continue to pay
60% plus Operation and
Maintenance charges, and
Sewer Use Charge.

Users

will
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REPORT OF SPECIAL TOWN MEETING
FOR THE TOWN OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
September 19, 1994

At 7:05 p.m. on the 19th day of September 1994, at the Rye
Junior High School gymnasium, Moderator Sharon DeVries called to
order the Special Town Meeting. Moderator DeVries announced that
the Selectmen duly requested the authorization for a Special Town
Meeting from the Superior Court who authorized the date, time and
place for this meeting on August 5, 1994. She said the meeting is
addressed to one issue alone.

The moderator briefly stated the rules of the meeting, saying
that when you speak you should step up to the microphone and give
your name and address, that you address comments through her, that
She stated too
you do not engage in counter debate if possible.
that she wanted everyone who wishes to speak to have that
opportunity. Mrs. DeVries said she had not received a request for
a secret ballot. She mentioned Reconsideration, concluding that it
was not particularly pertinent at this meeting since we are
addressing only one issue.
Mrs. DeVries informed those present that there were copies of
the collective bargaining agreement available here, a copy of which
is a part of this record.

The Moderator read Article

1.

in its entirety:

ARTICLE 1. To see if the Town will vote to approve the cost items
included in the collective bargaining agreement reached between the
Selectmen and the Rye Fire and Police Association, Teamsters Local
633, on May 23, 1994, which calls for the following increases in
salaries and related benefits (i.e. FICA, etc.):
Year

Percent Increase

Estimated Amount

1994

3%

$15,411

1995

2.73%

$16,500

and further to raise and appropriate- the sum of fifteen thousand
four hundred and eleven dollars ($15,411) for the 1994 fiscal year,
such sum representing the additional costs attributable to the
increase in salaries and benefits over those paid in the prior
fiscal year.

THIS ARTICLE IS RECOMMENDED BY BOTH THE BUDGET COMMITTEE AND THE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN.
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It was moved by Selectman Herlihy and seconded by Selectman
Quirk, to adopt this article as read. The moderator announced that
She recognized Mr.
the article was on the floor for discussion.
Herlihy who gave a little background on this agreement. He advised
the assembly of the handout "Explanation and Information on Warrant
Article" which was available to everyone, and is a part of this
record.
Mr. Herlihy said that in 1993 we entered into a one year
Last fall we began
agreement with the Fire and Police employees.
negotiations for a new agreement starting January 1, 1994. We had
a total of nine meetings in the fall of '93. Just before Christmas
the town made a final offer which was turned down by the
Association. At that point the Fire and Police Association decided
to change their affiliation from their own independent association
to be represented by Teamsters Local 633. That was approved by the
Public Employees Labor Relations Board in late December of 1993.
We had one meeting with Local 633 the last day of 1993 and we
thought we had an agreement at that meeting. That was voted down
by the Association. After two more sessions in January and early
The Teamsters
February of 1994, no agreement was reached again.
We
representative then asked to go to mediation in early April.
finally came out of that mediation with an agreement that was
signed off by both parties and accepted by the Teamsters Local on
We are here tonight, Mr. Herlihy said, to ratify
May 10, 1994.
that agreement.

Selectman Herlihy stated that State Law and Supreme Court
decisions of New Hampshire require that Selectmen bring before the
Town Meeting all the economic issues of a labor agreement. Those
items are in the handout. One of the requirements of both parties
in a labor agreement is that once we've agreed, we must present the
agreement in a positive fashion to the voters, i.e., do our best to
obtain approval of the agreement.
Mr. Herlihy went on to say that this is a two year agreement,
All of
commencing January 1, 1994 and ending December 31, 1995.
the terms and conditions of the agreement will be retroactive to
January 1, 1994. There is a 3% overall salary increase in 1994 and
This is in line with other labor
a 2.73% increase in 1995.
agreements already in effect in this town, i.e., our highway and
It's
town hall contract which is also with Teamsters Local 633.
also in line with other surrounding towns in the seacoast area.
Changes have been made in the salary structure by adding two new
step increases at the lower end so that new hires can be on a lower
wage rate than in the 1993 contract. We also made some changes in
It used to start at five years, now it starts
the longevity pay.
This
at ten years, and we added another step at eighteen years.
basically has no cost effect in this agreement. We made no changes
in holiday pay, sick leave, or the retirement plan except that as
wages change the retirement amount also changes.
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Mr. Herlihy further explained that there were some subjective

which are difficult to define, that have to do with
In several previous agreements the town
management rights.
bargained away certain of its rights to manage the work force
including manning, length of shifts, and control of overtime.
In
this agreement, the town has regained control of these areas and
we've already instituted some of these rights to reduce costs.
Specifically, he said, the first of the year the Police Department
was able to change shifts from twelve hours to eight hours. We've
Less you think
already seen a decrease in the cost of overtime.
that the Board instituted these provisions unilaterally without
your approval, we didn't. They were the subject of an unfair labor
practice by the union. The Town's position that this was a part of
their management rights was upheld by the Public Employees Labor
Relations Board so we were able to proceed to do that, because it
was not, in effect, a cost item.
changes,

The 1994 costs of the contract are calculated at $15,411.
This means we're going to increase the town's budget this year by
that amount of money.
The 1995 costs are estimated at $16,500.
Mr. Herlihy closed his remarks by saying that it's taken us
almost a year to obtain this agreement. The town has regained many
of its rights to operate as it sees fit. The salary rates are fair
and in line with other town contracts and surrounding towns and the
Board and the Budget Committee approved this agreement. He asked
for a positive vote on the agreement.

Moderator DeVries called for discussion.
Paula Snyder ascertained that an attachment to Article 2 of
the contract was missing from the handout.
She asked about the
insurance coverage as a cost item to the contract and what that
difference was.
Mr. Herlihy responded that this has not changed
from the last agreement so it's the same as it was before.
He
explained that this was already appropriated in our base budget
which was approved at the March Town Meeting.
Mrs. Snyder said she noticed that none of the fire and police
had signed the contract and she wondered if that was oversight or
is it that maybe the personnel were not in agreement with the total
contract.

Moderator DeVries asked if anyone had a copy of the signed
contract and who is it signed by?
Mr. Herlihy responded, saying that it was signed by Thomas D.
Noonan, Business Representative of Teamsters Local 633, the
authorized agent for the bargaining unit.
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Mrs. Snyder said she knew that but she knew that in the past
the employees 'representative had signed and they are listed here.
Mr.

Herlihy said he had no idea why they didn't sign it.

Mr. Quirk added that in years past they had an association and
now they're members of the Teamsters and they have a duly elected
representative from Local 633 who represents them.

Moderator DeVries ascertained from Mrs. Snyder that she was
not questioning whether this was an enforceable document.
"All

Mrs. Snyder reiterated her concern, to which Mr. Quirk said
I can say is we didn't tell them not to sign it."

wanted to know the
1363 Ocean Boulevard,
Dick Porter,
resolution of the status of the sick leave. Mr. Herlihy explained
that sick leave was not changed in this agreement, however in the
1993 agreement there were two provisions: employees employed after
1/1/93 can earn 30 days; employees hired prior to 1/1/93 can earn
50 days.
He told Mr. Porter that the Board of Selectmen felt that
they had solved the sick leave problem in 1993.
vote:

There being no further discussion, the moderator called for a
Show of Hands. Article 1 is declared PASSED.

Moderator DeVries declared that the impact on the budget is to
increase the 1994 budget by $15,411 for a revised 1994 total budget
amount of $4,159,532.
There being no further business to come before the meeting, it
was moved by Marty Quirk, seconded by Jack Tobey, to adjourn. So
Voted.

Meeting is declared ADJOURNED at 7:25 pm.

Respectfully subioitted.

^—dane

E. Ireland
Town Clerk/Tax Collector

true record^,,J^TEST
J^nelE. Ireland, Town Clerk/Tax Collector
TOWN ^ OF RYE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
September 21, 1994
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TOWN OF

RYE,

SPECIAL

NEW HAMPSHIRE

TOWN MEETING

SEPTEMBER

19,

1994

EXPLANATION AND INFORMATION ON WARRANT ARTICLE
The warrant article to be voted upon at this Special Town Meeting relates to a labor
agreement with the Teamsters Local 633 of New Hampshire/Rye Fire and Police
Association for a new labor contract covering the period January
December 31, 1995.

1,

1994 through

Court decisions and state law require that all economic items in labor contracts must be
presented to the voters at a Town N/leeting. While the Board of Selectmen, who
negotiated the labor contract, will explain the article in detail, the purpose of this
document is to fully inform the voters as to the economic terms of the new agreement
as well as present cost comparisons between the new and old labor agreement.

ARTICLE 1: APPROVAL OF TEAMSTERS LOCAL 633 CONTRACT FOR FIRE AND
POLICE EMPLOYEES.
IS RECOMMENDED BY BOTH THE BUDGET COMMITTEE AND THE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN.

THIS ARTICLE

The items
1

that

have an economic Impact

Salary increase

2. Salary

Steps

3.

Longevity pay

4.

Holiday Pay

in this

Agreement

are:

1 994 3% increase over 1 993. 1 995 will be 2.73%
over 1994. Step increases included in overall
percent increase.
Added two new hire steps at lower wage rates.
Will reduce future new hire costs.
Changed from 5 to 10 years before longevity
starts. Added one more step and increase last
two steps by $150. Has no cost increase over

contract

life.

No

change

cost
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5.

Sick Leave

No change. Remained

at

employees

7.

Retirement Pay
Medical Insurance

8.

Management

6.

days for
and 30 days

50

hired prior to 1/1/93
hired after that date.

all

for

due to wage increase.
No cost change. No benefits change.
Town gained control to set shifts and other
management prerogatives. Substantial savings
realized now and in the future, especially
Contribution increase

Rights

overtime costs.

a two vear agreement. Voting for this Agreement will have the following estimated
two year period of the Agreement with respect to wages and
other contract related costs.

This

is

financial effect over the

1994
1995

$15,411.00
$16,500.00

The following analysis gives an average cost per hour of all employees covered by this
Agreement as compared to the actual costs incurred in 1993. This analysis assumes that
the 1994 Agreement was in full force and effect beginning January 1, 1994.
1993 AVE.

HOUR COST

1994 AVE.

$22.18

6.

7.

Sick pay

3.
4.
5.

To

following

Straight time wages
Overtime wages
Longevity
Retirement
Medical insurance
Vacation

1

calculate the

1995 AVE.

$22.84

These averages include the

2.

HOUR COST

HOUR COST

$23.46

component

costs:

1994 and 1995 average hourly costs, the 1993 actual costs were applied
and decreases in the new Agreement, using the 1993 actual costs,

to the increases

hours.

NOTE: THIS DOCUMENT WILL BECOME PART OF THE MINUTES OF THIS SPECIAL
TOWN MEETING AND WAS MADE AVAILABLE TO ALL VOTERS AS THEY ENTERED

THE MEETING AREA.
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COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

TOWN OF RYE. N.H.

AND
RYE FIRE & POLICE ASSOCIATION

AFFILIATED WITH TEAMSTERS LOCAL 633 OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
1994-1995

4/11/94
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ARTICLE

I

PREAMBLE AND RECOGNITION
The Town of Rye, NH, is represented by its Board of Selectmen and
The Rye Fire & Police
hereinafter referred to as the Board.
Association is certified by the State of NH Public Employees Labor
Relations Board and hereinafter referred to as the Association. The
Board and the Association enter into this document hereinafter
referred to as Agreement in order to set forth terms and conditions
promote and maintain fair and uniform labor
of employment,
standards, equitable wage scales and an amicable means of resolving
any and all disagreements which may arise between the parties
hereto.

The Board recognizes the Rye Fire and Police Association as the
sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all permanent and full-time
members of the Rye Fire and Police Departments, excluding the Fire
and Police Chiefs, and the Assistant Fire Chief. Nothing in this
AGREEMENT shall deprive or limit any member covered by this
Agreement in the exercise of any rights and liberties granted them
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire or the United States
of America.
The memJDers of the Associations 's bargaining committee who are
scheduled to work a tour of duty during negotiations shall be
granted time off without loss of pay and benefits for all meetings
between the Town of Rye and the Association for the purposes of
negotiating the terms of an AGREEMENT.
This Agreement becomes effective at 0001, January 1, 1994..
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ARTICLE III

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS
Except as otherwise expressly and specifically limited by the
terms of this Agreement, the Employer retains all its customary,
usual and exclusive rights,
decision making,
prerogatives,
functions and authority connected
or in any way incidental to
its responsibility to manage the affairs of the Employer or any
part of the Employer.
The rights of the employees in the
bargaining unit and the Association hereunder are limited to those
specifically set forth in this Agreement, and the Employer retains
all prerogatives, functions, and rights not specifically limited by
the terms of this Agreement. The Employer shall have no obligation
to negotiate with the Association with respect to any such subjects
or the exercise of its discretion and decision making with regard
thereto any subject covered by the terms of this Agreement and
closed to further negotiations for terms hereof, and any subject
which was or might have been raised in the course of collective
bargaining, but is closed for the term hereof.
A.

B.
Without limitation, but by way of illustration, the exclusive
prerogatives, functions, and rights of the Employer shall include
the following:
1. To direct and supervise all operations,
functions and
policies of the Employer in which the employees in the
bargaining unit are employed.
2
To determine the need for a reduction or an increase in the
work force.

3. To establish, revise and implement standards for hiring,
classification, promotion, quality of work, safety, materials,
uniforms, appearance, equipment, methods and procedure. It is
jointly recognized that the employer must retain broad
authority to fulfill and implement its responsibilities and
may do so by oral and written work rules, existing or future.
4
To implement new, and to revise or discharge, wholly or in
part,
equipment,
old
methods,
procedures,
materials,
facilities and standards.

5.

To assign and distribute work.

6. To determine the need for and the qualifications of new
employees, transfers and promotions.

To assign
locations.

7.

8.

shifts,

workdays,

hours

of

work

and

work

To discipline, suspend, demote or discharge an employee.
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ARTIgLS IV
NO STRIKE CLAUSE

Under no circumstances will the Association cause, encourage,
sponsor or participate in any strike, sit-down, stay-in, stayout, sick-in, sick-out, work slowdowns picketing of any kind while
on duty, multiple resignations, withholding of services or any
curtailment of work or restriction or interference with the
operations of the Fire or Police Departments of the Town of Rye
during the term of this Agreement. In the event of any such
activity, the Board shall not be required to negotiate on the
merits of the dispute which gave rise to such activity until any
Further, the Town may, at its
and all such activity has ceased.
option, institute any or all proceedings in Court, at law, or in
Equity, or in Arbitration as it may choose.
In the event that any of the activities described above, or any
generically similar activities occur, then the members of this
Association shall individually and in their capacity as Association
Officers immediately call upon each participant emd urge an
immediate end to such activities.
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The time limits specified maybe extended
considered as maximum.
only by prior written mutual agreement.
The Association, when requested by an employee, may assist him or
In so assisting the employee, the
her in processing a grievance.
Association shall be given the opportunity to discuss the matter
with the employee and any other employees who may have information
bearing on the matter, prior to presenting the grievance.
The
Association will be notified of the scheduled time and duration of
with
departmental
this procedure, which shall not interfere
business

Section

6.

Individuals of the Association or the Association may seek review
action on, and remedies for grievances either through court
action and/or the formal grievance procedure as hereinafter
provided for
of,

Section

7

1. Level 1 - Oral (Supervisor)
The aggrieved employee shall
first present his Grievance to his immedia'te supervisor,
either a Sergeant in the Police Department or the Assistant
Chief in the Fire Department, within three (3) working days of
the day the aggrieved employee knew, or should have known, of
The
the event, or events, on which the Grievance is based.
Supervisor shall respond to the aggrieved employee within
three (3) working days of the presentation of the Grievance.
:

Level 2 - Written f Fire or Police Chief) : If the Grievance
is not resolved to the satisfaction of the aggrieved employee
2

by his immediate Supervisor, then within three (3) working
days, it shall be reduced to writing, signed by the employee,
and forwarded to the Fire or Police Chief. The Fire or Police
Chief shall schedule and meet with the aggrieved employee
within eight (8) working days. The Fire or Police Chief shall
then respond within three (3) working days of said meeting.
If the
3. Level 3 - Written (Board of Selectmen or Designee):
Grievance is not settled to the satisfaction of the aggrieved
employee at Level 2, the aggrieved employee may submit a
written grievance to the Board of Selectman, or their
Designee, within five (5) working days of the due date for
response at Level 2. The Board of Selectmen, or its Designee,
and the aggrieved employee shall meet within five (5) working
days of submission of the Grievance to the Board's level. The
Board, or its Designee, shall submit a written response within
three (3) working days of said meeting. (Refer to Article VI
Arbitration.)
for processing to Level 4

—

108

The Arbitrator shall furnish a written opinion specifying the
The decision of the Arbitrator, if
reasons for his decision.
within the scope of his authority and power within this Agreement
shall be final and binding upon the Association and the Town and
the aggrieved employee who initiated the Grievance.
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ARTICLE VIII

AMBULANCE COVERAGE
It is understood and agreed that members of the Rye Fire and Police
Association may serve as on call ambulance personnel in the
emergency medical services. When said members are serving in this
capacity they will be compensated on the same basis as other on
call ambulance personnel.

It is understood that the members of the Rye Fire and Police
Association agree and understand that this Article VIII does not
come under the Overtime Article XI, and is not covered by
seniority.

It is understood and agreed that the on call shifts will be as
follows:

Monday-Sunday Nights
Saturday & Sunday Days

1800 hovirs to 0600 hovirs
0600 hours to 1800 hours

It is understood and agreed that emergency medical services on call
pay rate will be as follows:

$36.00 per twelve (12) hour shift
$3.00 per hour in addition to twelve hour shift if held over.
$6.00 per hour while on ambulance runs payable for the first
hour and computed to the next half hour. This is in addition
to the above mentioned $36.00 per twelve hour shift.
It is understood and agreed that the payroll payment will be by
separate check subject to all appropriate payroll deductions to
Association members on the next regular pay day of the new (next)
month, i.e. a monthly payroll.

Members of the Association utilized as third attendant will be
compensated in accordance with provisions of Article XI. Overtime.
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Nothing contained herein, however, shall
the Board of Selectmen.
in any way limit the Town from dismissing any employee for just
cause pursuant to the disciplinary actions and procedures provided
for.

Section

4

The Selectmen and the Association re-affirm and will maintain the
policy of non-discrimination against any person because of sex.
race, creed, national origin, marital status or participation in
Association activities, and agree to abide by the provisions of RSA
273-A, and particularly RSA 273-A:5 which enumerates unfair labor
practices.

Section 5.

Permanent reduction of personnel (full time firefighters and police
officers) shall be subject to approval of the next Town Meeting.
(This section added by vote of the Annual Town Meeting held 12
March 1983 with a hand vote of Yes - 204, No - 139.)
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ARTICLE XI

OVERTIME
Section

1.

Overtime shall be paid to any member covered by this Agreement who
is required to work more hours than he is scheduled to work in any
given week, including departmental scheduled training outside of
scheduled working hours.
Said compensation shall be paid at the
rate of one and one-half (time and a half - 1 1/2) times, their
Regular hours include earned sick
regular hourly rate of pay.
leave, vacation, bereavement leave, personal days.
Section

2.

It is expressly understood that swapping shifts between personnel
is not subject to these overtime provisions, i.e. any additional
hours worked because of a swap will not be added to the forty (40)
or forty-two (42) hour regular work week.

Section

3

Members of this Association called back to work shall be guaranteed
two (2) hours of overtime. Time actually worked beyond the two (2)
hours call back period shall be paid to the next half (1/2) hour.
Section 4.

Any member required to attend Administrative Hearings as part of
the job requirement shall, if such attendance falls on off duty
hours, be entitled to overtime.
Section

5.

Overtime shall be paid for time spent in court by department
prosecutor whenever that time is outside his regular work shift,
(police only)
Section

6.

Court checks must be turned into the Town if overtime under this
Article is accepted.

Section

7.

All overtime shall go to the members of this Association first and
in order of seniority.
If no full time member of this Association
is available then time can be offered to specials/call personnel.

TA AS MOD 12/3/93
(12/16, SEC 6 & 7 REVERSED, SEC

7

FROM 93 AGREEMENT)
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ARTICLE XIII
VACATION

Section

1.

Vacation shall be earned in accordance with the following schedule.
After six months and through one years continuous service, 5
shifts.
After one year and through four years continuous service, lo
shifts.
After four years and through ten years continuous service, 15
shifts.

After ten years and through twenty years continuous service,
20 shifts.

After twenty years continuous service, 25 shifts.
Section

2

Vacation leave may be accumulated up to thirty (3 0) shifts,
provided however that each employee must take at least 5 shifts as
vacation each calendar year. At the time of retirement or voluntary
resignation, the employee shall be paid his accumulated vacation
shifts. In the event of the employees death, his accumulated leave
shall be paid to his spouse or estate within thirty (30) days of
Vacation not taken beyond the thirty (30) days
members death.
accumulation allowed herein shall be lost. All vacation time must
be approved in advance in writing by Department Head or his
designee.
Section

3

Probationary employees shall not take more than
during their probationary period.
Section

5

shifts vacation

4

If vacation is to be taken in blocks of 4 shifts or longer, then
the employee shall, if they so request, be paid his vacation pay on
the payday next/prior to his departure on vacation.

Section

5.

Vacation requested on holidays will require approval of person
required to cover said vacation shift, in addition to Department
Head approval.
Section

6.

Vacation approval/disapproval back to employee within
submission date.
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ARTICLE XIV
SICK LEAVE

SECTION

1.

All sick leave earned by agreements prior to December 31,1989 shall
be paid at the salary rate of the employee on the last day of the
year earned.

SECTION

2.

All sick leave earned under the Agreement commencing January 1,
1990 by members of this Association for the period January 1, 1990
through December 31, 1992 may be taken as sick leave only.
SECTION

3.

As to each individual employees usage of sick leave from time of
first employment, each day of sick leave actually taken shall be
charged first against sick leave days earned in the period 1/1/90
through 12/31/92, and then from the period starting with the
employees date of hire.
SECTION 4.

Commencing on January 1, 1993 sick leave shall be earned as stated
When an employee leaves the department for any
in Section 6.
reason they shall be paid for one half (1/2) their unused sick
leave not to exceed 50 working days. Said payment shall be at the
salary rate of the employee on December 31 of the year earned,
starting with the most recent year and going backwards until the
appropriate number of days are reached.
SECTION

5.

Commencing on July 1, 1993, members hired after this date shall
earn sick leave as stated in Section 6. Vrtien an employee leaves
the department for any reason they shall be paid for one half (1/2)
their unused sick leave not to exceed 30 working days. Said payment
shall be at the salary rate of the employee on December 31 of the
year earned, starting with the most recent year and going backwards
until the appropriate number of days are reached.
SECTION

6.

Sick leave shall be earned at the rate of one shift per month with
twelve (12) shift per year total with no limitations to
accumulation thereof.
a

SECTION

7.
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ARTICLE XV
INJURY LEAVE

Section

1.

The Town shall provide Workmen's Compensation for all members of
this Association as prescribed by State Statutes.

Section

2.

When an employee is absent from work after sustaining a personal
injury or illness arising out of and in the course of their
employment for the Town of Rye, they shall be entitled to sign
their Workmen's Compensation Check over to the Town and receive
their weekly pay check or keep the Workmen's Compensation Check and
forfeit their weekly pay check.
Section

3.

Call firefighters and special police officers mav be utilized as
injury leave relief personnel to replace recmlar employees while
they are on injury leave for more than five ^5) shifts if working
a five (5) shift week or four (4) shifts if working a four (4)
shift week consecutively.

Said call firefighters and special police officers are not covered
by any other Articles of this Agreement while in said employment.
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ARTICLE XVII
UNIFORMS
Section

1.

The Town shall provide all new members of this Association with new
uniforms and equipment as enumerated in the departments rules and
regulations or SOP's.

Section

2

Damaged or loss to above uniforms arising out of and in the normal
course of duty, excluding reasonable wear and tear, shall be
replaced or repaired by the Town.
Section

3

Fire and Police Chiefs shall designate where uniforms and equipment
shall be procured and on what basis uniforms and equipment shall be
replaced. An cunount equal to $350.00 per member of the Association
shall be included in the respective departments budget.
Monies
will be dispersed by the department heads on an as needed basis.
Section

4

If the department changes uniforms, members of the Association will
be furnished three (3) sets of uniforms, winter and stammer. During
the calendar year that said uniforms are changed members will not
receive the $350.00 mentioned in Section 4 above but will receive
the uniforms listed in this Section and a uniform allowance of
$150.00.
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ARTICLE XIX
PRIVATE DETAILS

Section

1.

Private details are those work details which are not considered as
public employment by the Board, i.e. that is: not supported by
local property tax dollars.
Section

2.

All private details shall be paid at the rate of $20.00 per hour to
the members of the Association assigned and a $5.00 surcharge shall
be added thereto and shall be paid to the Town as an administrative
The Town shall not involve itself in
and collection surcharge.
establishing and/ or cpioting prices for special details, but all
payments by vendors shall be made directly to the Town in
accordance with regulations established by the Town.

Section

3

Association members are guaranteed a minimiom of three (3) hours per
private detail, and shall be paid for all private details worked by
separate pay check on the next regular pay day or no later than the
second regular pay day after the detail.
Section

4.

Private details are NOT subject to the OVERTIME provisions of this
Agreement
Section

5.

Private detail assignment shall be made in
departmental regulations. But nothing contained
such regulation shall obligate any member to
private detail (s) .
All private details SHALL
this ASSOCIATION first, in order of seniority,
offered to special officers/call firefighters.
Section

accordance with
herein or in any
serve/accept any
go to members of
and before being

6.

Any and all reporting of income earned from private details shall
be separate and apart from any and all reporting of income earned
through regular duty and shall always clearly specify that such
income was earned by the Association member off duty working
additional hours above and beyond his regular work schedule.
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Single employee health insurance is provided at no cost to the
employee; however, as insurance coverage graduates to two person
coverage or family coverage, 80% of each coverage will be paid by
the TOWN; 20% to be paid by the employee as a payroll deduction.

SECTION

7.

During the term of this AGREEMENT, the TOWN will provide dental
insurance for each member of the ASSOCIATION under the following
terms
Delta Dental, Option II offered by the NH Municipal
Association.

A one person rate for dental insurance is provided
by the TOWN at no cost to the employee.
SECTION

8.

Increases or decreases in health insurance premiums to the TOWN
shall be applied to the TOWN and the employee at the rate of 80%
and 20%, respectively.

An increase in benefits causing an increase in premium shall be
reviewed by the covered employees before the increase is
instituted.
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ARTICLE XXII

GENERAL

Section

1.

The Association recognizes the prerogatives of the Town to operate
and manage its affairs in all respects, except as specifically
As to every matter not expressly
covered by this Agreement.
covered by this Agreement and except as expressly or directly
modified by clear language and a specific provision of this
Agreement, the Town retains, exclusively to itself, all rights and
powers that is has, or maybe hereafter be granted by law, and shall
exercise the same without such exercise being made subject of
grievance or Arbitration.

Section

2.

The parties acknowledge that during negotiations which resulted in
this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make
demands and proposals with respect to any subject matter, not
removed by Law from the area of Collective Bargaining, and that the
understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the
exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this
Agreement. Therefore, the Town and the Association, for the life
of this Agreement, each, voluntarily and unqualifiedly, waives the
right and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to
Bargain Collectively with respect to any subject or matter not
specifically referred to or covered by this Agreement, even though
such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or
contemplation of either or both parties at the time that they
negotiated or signed this Agreement.

Section

3

The waiver or any breach or condition of this Agreement by either
party shall not constitute a precedent with respect to future
enforcement of any, or all, of the terms of this Agreement.

Section

4.

The Town and the Association herein agree this Document represents
the entire Agreement between the parties and that no other
Agreement, understanding or past practice exists, except as is
specifically enunciated in this Agreement.

Section

5.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any
Grievance resolved at a Grievance Level below that of the Level of
the Board of Selectmen shall be specifically subject to their
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ARTIPL6 XXIII
PROMOTIONS

Section

1.

All promotions for positions covered by this Agreement, shall be
made from among permanent members of this Association, provided
qualified
equally
at
least
members
are
that
such
with
applications/applicants from outside the Association.

Section

2

Seniority and rank should be considered among all other factors.
Section

3

POLICE.

All promotions shall include but not be limited to successful
Written
passing of competitive written and oral examinations.
examinations are to be administered by a recognized outside agency
experienced in the administration of police examinations and
approved by the department chief and the Board of Selectmen.
Section

4

FIRE
All department officers within this Association and company
officers shall be appointed by the Chief of the Department after
(Town Ordinance Rye Fire
passing competitive examinations.
Department, revised Town Meeting 1990, Section 4.)
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ARTICLE XXV
DURATION

Section

1

This Agreement shall be in full force and effective from 0001, X.
January 1994 through 2400. 31 December 1995. This Agreement shall
continue in full force and effect from year to year thereafter,
unless written notice by certified mail of desire to terminate is
served by either party upon the other at least ninety (90) days
prior to date of expiration.

Section 2.
If either party desires to add new articles or delete or change any
article (s) in this Agreement, written notice by certified mail
shall be served on the other party at least ninety (90) days prior
to December 31st of the current calendar year.

Section

3

If negotiations are in progress at the expiration date of this
Agreement, the Agreement shall continue in effect by mutual consent
of both parties until conclusion of the negotiations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE CAUSED THIS AGREEMENT
1994.
DAY OF
,
TO BE EXECUTED THIS

FOR RYE FIRE & POLICE
ASSOCIATION,
TEAMSTERS
:AI/, 633^0F NH

FOR THE TOWN OF RYE, NH

Board of/'Selectmen:
'.

YIg-p

.

y^homas D. Noonan
Business Manager, LU 633

Peter Colbeth, President

Mark

N.

Zartarian, V.P.

Joseph G. Mills, Jr.
Leon Blaisdell

John Scippa
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ARTICLE XXVII

ANNUAL PHYSICAL

Section

1.

Members of this Association will be provided annual physicals at
Town expense. Members have the option to obtain physicals at the
physician of their choice.
Section

2.

If necessary, the Fire and Police Chiefs shall provide the
employees with the required guidelines for such physical exam.
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ARTICLE XXIX
EMPLOYEE TNnKMNIFICATION

Section

1.

The Town of Rye agrees to carry the necessary insurance to
indemnify the employees covered under this Agreement from law suits
or other legal filings that may result directly from their
employment by the Town of Rye.

I
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APPENDIX B

Section

1.

Town of Rye Fire and Police Department 1994 AND 1995 wage scale for
40 hour week for all employees hired on or after January 1, 1994.
1994-1995

Level

STEPl STEP2 STEP3 STEP4 STEPS STEP6 STEP? STEPS STEP9

10

14.12 14.52 14.92 15.34 15.76 16.80 17.30

9

13.50 13.87 14.26 14.65 15.06 16.05 16.53

8

10.82 11.78 12.90 13.26 13.63 14.01 14.40 15.33 15.79

NOTE:

All figiires shown are hourly.
Weekly = 4 hovurs X^s hourly rate
Annual = 52 X^s weekly rate
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APPENDIX D
Section

1.

The following scales are for those employees employed by the Town
prior to January 1, 1994. These wage rates are for a ±2. hour week.
For 1994 only, such employees are entitled to a 3% wage increase on
January 1, 1994 plus any step increase they may be due in 1994 on
In 1995, there shall be a total 3*
their employment anniversary.
increase applied to Step and annual increase as outlined in Section
3 of this Appendix D.

Section

2

1994 STEP AND ANNUAL INCREASE

Level

STEPl STEP2 STEP3 STEP4 STEPS STEP6 STEP?

10

13.85 14.24 14.64 15.05 15.46 16.48 16.98

9

13.24 13.60 13.99 14.38 14.77 15.75 16.22

8

12.66 13.01 13.37 13.74 14.13 15.04 15.49

Section

3

To apply a total 3% increase to Step and Annual increases combined
for 1995, the total hourly cost as of 12/31/94 was calculated from
A 3% increase
the employee hourly rates as shown in Appendix E.
was applied to that number giving the 1995 3% increase in a total
per hour cost. The Step increases granted eligible employees in
1995 are listed and total cost for the Step increases calculated.
The
The remainder was applied an an annual increase for 1995.
annual increase for 1995 will be 2.73 % as shown below.
1995 STEP AND ANNUAL INCREASE

Level

STEPl STEP2 STEP3 STEP4 STEP5 STEP6 STEP7

10

14.23 14.63 15.04 15.46 15.88 16.93 17.44

9

13.60 13.97 14.37 14.77 15.18 16.18 16.66

8

13.00 13.36 13.73 14.12 14.51 15.45 15.91

NOTE:

All figures shown are hourly.
Weekly =42 hours X^s hourly rate
Annual = 52 X's weekly rate
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APPENDIX F
HEALTH INSURAMCE REOPEN CLAUSE

The parties to this Agreement agree to consider any changes in
health insurance plans that may be beneficial to the Town and the
employees. Any such change must be agreed to by the Union and the
Town and could only be implemented on January 1, 1995.
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Fire

Department

-

Fire

Department

-

Non Emergency
Non Emergency Fax

964-6411/6429

964-9894

EMERGENCY
AMBULANCE EMERGENCY
FIRE

964-8683
964-8683
964-5521

POLICE ALL CALLS
-

Be

sure to give your

name and address

DO NOT HANG UP

clearly.

until

your emergency
your message has been

as well as the nature of

you are sure

that

understood.

INFORMATION DIRECTORY
964-5523/5630

Selectmen's Office
Selectmen's Office Fax

964-1516

Sewer Commissioner's Office

964-6815
964-6777

Treasurer

Town Clerk/Tax Collector's

964-8562

Office

Cemetery Superintendent

964-6777

Building hispector's Office

964-9800

Recreation Department

964-6281

Works Department

964-5300

Dump (Recycle or Brush)

964-5300

Public

Library

964-8401

Library Fax

964-7065

Rye Municipal Court

964-5018

HOURS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Selectmen's Office (Mon-Fri)

Sewer Commissioner's Office (Mon-Fri)
Treasurer (Tue

Town

& Thr)

Clerk/Tax Collector's Office (Mon-Fri)

(Monday Evenings)
Building Inspector's Office (Mon-Fri)

(Please call the Building Inspector's Office for
Public

Works

Director (Mon-Fri)

Dump & Brush Dump
Recycle Dump (Tue & Sat ONLY)
Brush Dump (Opened on Tue & Sat ONLY)
Library (Mon, Wed, Fri)
Recycle

Library (Tue

& Thr)

Library (Sat)

AM-4:30 PM
AM-11:00AM*
2:00PM-4:30PM*
8:00 AM-4:30 PM
6:00 AM-8:00 PM
8:00 AM-4:30 PM*
8:00

8:00

an appointment.)
6:30 AM-3:00 PM

CLOSED ON MONDAYS
7:30 AM-3:45 PM
7:30 AM-3:45 PM
9:00 AM-5:00 PM
1:00 PM-8:00 PM
9:00AM-NOON

*Subject to change
Notices for Selectmen's meetings, other Town Boards, Commissions, and
Committee meetings are posted on the Town bulletin board located at the
Town Hall and the Rye Post Office.
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